THE NATIONAL EXAMINATIONS COUNCIL OF TANZANIA



CANDIDATES' ITEM RESPONSE ANALYSIS REPORT FOR THE CERTIFICATE OF SECONDARY EDUCATION EXAMINATION (CSEE) 2018

034 AGRICULTURAL SCIENCE

THE NATIONAL EXAMINATIONS COUNCIL OF TANZANIA



CANDIDATES' ITEM RESPONSE ANALYSIS REPORT FOR CERTIFICATE OF SECONDARY EDUCATION EXAMINATION (CSEE) 2018

034 AGRICULTURAL SCIENCE

Published by The National Examinations Council of Tanzania P.O. Box 2624 Dar es Salaam, Tanzania

© The National Examinations Council of Tanzania, 2019

All rights reserved

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOREWORD	. iv
1.0 INTRODUCTION	1
2.0 ANALYSIS OF THE CANDIDATES' PERFORMANCE ON EACH	
QUESTION IN 034/1-AGRICULTURAL SCIENCE 1	2
2.1 SECTION A: OBJECTIVE QUESTIONS	2
2.1.1 Question 1: Question 1: Multiple Choice Items	2
2.1.2 Question 2: Matching Items	5
2.2 SECTION B: SHORT ANSWER QUESTIONS	7
2.2.1 Question 3: Crop Protection	7
2.2.2 Question 4: Animal Feeds and Feeding	. 10
2.2.3 Question 5: Factors of Production	.13
2.2.4 Question 6: Soil Formation	16
2.2.5 Question 7: Agricultural Extension	. 19
2.2.6 Question 8: Surveying	. 23
2.2.7 Question 9: Forestry Crops Production	. 26
2.2.8 Question 10: Soil and Water Conservation	31
2.3 SECTION C: ESSAY TYPE QUESTIONS	. 33
2.3.1 Question 11: Crop protection	. 33
2.3.2 Question 12: Agricultural Marketing	41
2.3.3 Question 13: Dairy Cattle Production	46
3.0 ANALYSIS OF THE CANDIDATES' PERFORMANCE ON EACH	
QUESTION IN 034/2 - AGRICULTURAL SCIENCE 2	52
3.1 SHORT ANSWER QUESTIONS	52
3.1.1 Question 1: Crop Production	52
3.1.2 Question 2: Livestock Production	61
3.1.3 Agro-Mechanics and Soil Science	. 67
4.0 PERFORMANCE OF THE CANDIDATES ON EACH TOPIC/FIELD	. 74
5.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	.76
5.1 Conclusion	.76
5.2 Recommendations	. 77
Appendix I	. 78
Appendix II	. 79

FOREWORD

The Agricultural Science Candidates' Items Response Analysis Report on the Certificate of Secondary Education Examination (CSEE), 2018 has been prepared in order to provide feedback to students, teachers, parents, policy makers and other educational stakeholders on the candidates' performance in this subject.

The Certificate of Secondary Education Examination marks the end of four years of secondary education. It is the summative evaluation which, among other things, shows the effectiveness of the education system in general and education delivery system in particular. Essentially, candidates' responses to the examination questions is a strong indicator of what the education system was able or unable to offer to the students in their four years of secondary education.

The analysis presented in this report shows general average performance of the candidates with some of the candidates performing well and others performing poorly in the examination. The analysis intends to contribute towards understanding of some of the factors that led to such performance. The candidates who did well in the examination showed good mastery in topics examined and adequate field practical exposure, addressed well the requirements of the questions and possessed good command of the English language. In contrary, the candidates with poor performance had inadequate knowledge and field practical experience in different topics. They also demonstrated poor English language proficiency which made them fail to meet the demands of the questions.

The National Examinations Council of Tanzania will highly appreciate comments and suggestions from teachers, students and the public in general that can be used in improving future Candidates' Items Response Analysis Reports.

Finally, the Council would like to thank all the Examinations Officers, Subject Teachers and all others who participated in the preparation of this report.

Dr. Charles E. Msonde EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report is based on the analysis of candidates' items response in Certificate of Secondary Education Examination in Agricultural Science subject for the year 2018. The Agricultural Science examination was set according to the 2008 examination format which is based on the 1997 Agricultural Science syllabus.

This examination had two papers, namely 034/1 Agricultural Science 1 (theory paper), and 034/2 Agricultural Science 2 (practical paper). The theory paper consisted of three sections A, B and C. Section A consisted of two objective questions, Multiple-Choice Items and Matching Items, each with items (i) to (x). Candidates were required to answer all the questions in this section. The section carried 20 marks (10 marks for each question). Section B comprised of eight short answer questions. Candidates were required to answer all the questions in this section. The section carried 20 marks (20 marks). Candidates were required to answer all the questions in this section. The section carried 60 marks. Section C had three essay type questions. Candidates were required to answer only one question. This section carried 20 marks. The practical paper consisted of three short answer questions. The candidates were required to answer two questions. Each question carried 25 marks.

This year's results registers average performance by the candidates in which of the total 8,037 candidates who sat for the subject examination, 4,255 (52.94%) candidates passed and 3,782 (47.06%) candidates failed the examination. This accounts for an increase of 14.13 percent pass compared to the year 2017 results. The following table shows the performance of the candidates by grades:

Grades	Α	В	С	D	F	Total
Boys	1	9	706	1,844	1,423	3,983
Girls	0	0	281	1,414	2,359	4,054
Total	1	9	987	3,258	3,786	8,037

Candidates' Performance in Grades in CSEE 2018

Source: NECTA Statistics Book, page 8, CSEE, 2018

The report is intended to provide feedback to educational stakeholders on the performance of candidates, with the aim of improving candidates' performance by revealing their weaknesses and strengths in responding to the examination questions.

Generally, the report will help in enhancing the teaching-learning process and therefore improve candidates' performance.

The following section indicates the analysis of each question by briefly giving the demands of the questions, the way the candidates responded and the reasons for their good or poor performance in each question. Some extracts of the sample answers showing candidates' good and poor responses have been included. In analyzing candidates' performance in each question, the pass scale used were 0 - 29; indicating poor performance, 30 - 64 average performance and 65 - 100 good performance. Thus, when the performance of candidates falls under the certain group, the performance is described according to that particular group.

2.0 ANALYSIS OF THE CANDIDATES' PERFORMANCE ON EACH QUESTION IN 034/1-AGRICULTURAL SCIENCE 1

2.1 SECTION A: OBJECTIVE QUESTIONS

2.1.1 Question 1: Question 1: Multiple Choice Items

This question comprised of ten items drawn from various topics (Farm Records and Accounts, Farm Workshop, Factors Affecting Crop Production, Soil Fertility and Productivity, Agricultural Extension, Sheep Farming, Agro-Forestry, Agricultural Development in Tanzania, Soil and Water Conservation and Annual Crops Production). The candidates were required to choose the correct answer from among the given five alternatives.

The question was attempted by 8,094 (99.9%) candidates of which; 2,411(29.8%) candidates scored 0 to 2 marks; 5,428 (67%) candidates scored 3 to 6 marks and 255 (3.2%) candidates scored 7 to 10 out of the 10 marks allocated to the question. The statistics show general good performance of the candidates since 5,683 (69.2%) candidates scored 3 to 10 marks. Figure 1.1 shows the distribution of the candidates' scores in the question.



Figure 1.1: Candidates' Performance in Question 1

In accordance to Figure 1.1, the general performance of the candidates was good as 70.2 percent of the candidates scored of 30 percent and above. Good performance of the candidates in this question was a result of good mastery of the topics by most of the candidates in the question items.

The observation shows that, most candidates provided correct responses in items (iii), (iv), (v), (vi), (vii), (viii) and (ix) and responded incorrectly in items (i), (ii) and (x). The analysis of candidates' responses to the items in which the candidates responded correctly is shown below:

In item (iii), the correct response was C (mosaic) for the crop disease that is caused by virus. The distracters were A (blight), B (canker), D (rust) and E (mildew). In this item, the majority of the candidates showed good understanding of causes of crop diseases. This good understanding of the topic enabled them to choose the correct response.

The correct option for the type of fertilizer which help in the development of the root system in item (iv) was D (Triple super- phosphate). In this item most of the candidates proved adequate knowledge on types of fertilizers and their roles. The incorrect options were A (Sulphate of Ammonia), B (Urea), C (Muriate of Potash) and E (Calcium Ammonium Nitrate).

In item (v), the correct response was A (Learning by doing) as the most effective way of learning in Agricultural Extension by rural people. The distracters were B (Learning by listening), C (Learning by innovating), D

(Learning by watching) and E (Learning by reading). The candidates demonstrated good mastery of agricultural extension teaching methods.

Option D (Docking) was the correct response in item (vi); in which the candidates were required to choose the management practice in sheep that allows mating to take place with little difficult. The incorrect responses were A (Castration), B (Shearing), C (Dehorning) and E (Debeaki4ng). Most of the candidates responded it correctly by choosing option D (docking). This is an indication that the candidates had enough knowledge and practical skills on sheep management practices.

In item (vii), the candidates were required to choose the terminology which refers to growing of crops and trees or shrubs on the same piece of land. The correct response was C (Agrisilvicultural). Most of the candidates gave correct response in this item; signifying good understanding of terminologies used in agroforestry. The incorrect responses were A (Silvopastoral), B (Agrosilvopastoral), D (Apiforestry) and E (Entomoforestry).

In item (viii), the correct option was B (Simple and inefficient tools); as the economic problem that hinders agricultural development in Tanzania. The incorrect options were A (Scarcity of inputs), C (Poor marketing facilities), D (Limited research facilities) and E (Poor health in part of the farmers). The candidates demonstrated good understanding of the main problems facing agriculture in Tanzania as they were able to choose the correct response from among the alternatives given despite that all the distracters were the types of problems facing farmers in Tanzania.

The correct response for item (ix) was E (Monocropping); as the farming practice which cause soil to lose its fertility. The distracters were A (Alley cropping), B (Mixed cropping), C (Intercropping) and D (Multistorrey cropping). The candidates were knowledgeable enough on different practices since they were capable of distinguishing the patterns of cropping from the agroforestry practices, and therefore managed to choose the correct response.

On the other hand, the candidates responded incorrectly in items (i), (ii), and (x). In item (i), the correct response was E (Valuation) as a list of all that a farmer owns and the cash value of each item. The incorrect responses were A (Asset), B (Inventory), C (Liability) and D (Stock). Majority of candidates opted for option B (inventory) because they just considered the first part of the item stem and left the second part of the item stem, which gives the value

of the asset and in turn the statement to mean valuation. The candidates were unable to provide correct response from the question because they lacked knowledge on farm records.

In item (ii), that required candidates to choose a tool that is used to remove out nails, the correct response for this item was E (Spincers). Most of the candidates were attracted to option D (ball pein hammer) as they mixed up the functions of the ball pein hammer and that of claw hammer which performs the same function. The candidates showed lack of knowledge and practical skills on different types of farm workshop tools and their functions. The distracters in this item were A (Screw driver), B (Chisel), C (Brace) and D (Ball pein hammer).

Option C (Early sowing), was the correct response on how maize streak virus disease can be best controlled in item (x). The incorrect alternatives were A (Burning crops), B (Early harvesting), D (Uprooting of diseased plants) and E (Application of Nitrogen fertilizers). Majority of the candidates opted for option D (Uprooting of diseased plants) for the fact that; viral diseases cannot be treated and hence they thought that the only way to control the disease is to remove the diseased plants from the field. They failed to choose correct response due to inadequate knowledge on methods of controlling crop diseases.

2.1.2 Question 2: Matching Items

The question consisted of ten items extracted from the topic on Factors Affecting Livestock Production. The candidates were required to match the items in List A with the responses in List B by writing the letter of the correct response from List B beside the item number in List A. List A consisted of symptoms of diseases with their corresponding diseases in List B.

The question was attempted by 8,064 (99.6%) candidates whereby; 6,617 (82.1%) candidates scored 0 to 2 marks; 1,423 (17.6%) candidates scored 3 to 6 marks and 24 (0.3%) candidates scored 7 to 10 out of 10 marks allocated to the question. The general performance in this question was poor considering that; 1,447 (17.9%) candidates scored 3 to 10 marks. Figure 1.2 depicts the scores of the candidates in the question.



Figure 1.2: Candidates' Performance in Question 2

Figure 1.2 illustrates poor performance of the candidates in the question. In this question only 17.9 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. This is attributed to inadequate knowledge and field practical skills in livestock diseases by most of the candidates.

Candidates mostly provided incorrect responses in most of the items. The items in which most of the candidates gave incorrect responses for the diseases symptoms and their corresponding diseases were item (ii); the disease characterized by swollen lymph nodes -L (Trypanosomiasis), item (iii); the disease characterized by the discharge of blood stained urine -M (Babesiosis), item (vii); the disease characterized by the animal discharging mucus from the mouth, becoming weak, laying down being unable to rise again -I (East Coast Fever), item (viii); the disease characterized by sudden abortion shown by blood stained tail and rump of an animal-B (Brucellosis), item (ix); the disease characterized by swellings in areas of heavy muscles which when pressed gives out peculiar cracking sound-D (Black quarter) and item (x); the disease characterized by the animal showing nervous symptoms, moving in a circle and twisting of eye lids falling down its legs keep paddling in the air-J (Heart water). Failure to provide correct responses in these items by most of the candidates is attributed to inadequate knowledge and lack of field practical exposure on livestock diseases, thus they ended up guessing for the correct responses.

On the other hand, majority of the candidates responded correctly in items (i), (iv), (v), and (vi). The items and their corresponding correct responses

provided by most of the candidates were: item (i); the disease characterized by the animal giving out excessive saliva and difficult breathing -F (Foot and Mouth Disease), item (iv); the disease characterized by the animal giving out a lot of tears from the eyes. -H (Rinderpest), item (v); the disease characterized by reddish and swollen udder -A (Mastitis) and item (vi); the disease characterized by the animal bleeding non clotting blood from the natural openings -C (Anthrax). In these items, the candidates were able to provide correct responses due to the fact that the diseases are more common in livestock keeping practice.

2.2 SECTION B: SHORT ANSWER QUESTIONS

2.2.1 Question 3: Crop Protection

The question constituted two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) state the meaning of biological weed control and give three methods in which biological weed control is applied and (b) classify herbicides on the basis of time of application and briefly explain their time of application.

The question was attempted by 7,608 (93.9%); among which 7,118 (93.6%) candidates scored 0 to 2 marks; 433 (5.7%) candidates scored 2.5 to 4.5 marks and only 57 (0.7%) candidates scored 5 to 6.5 marks of the 7 marks allocated to the question. The data indicates poor performance of the candidates in this question with only 490 (6.4%) candidates scored 2.5 to 6.5 marks. Figure 1.3 represents the candidates' scores in the question.



Figure 1.3: Candidates' Performance in Question 3

Figure 1.3 signifies poor performance of the candidates in the question as only 6.4 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. Poor performance in this question was caused by incompetence in the mastery of weed control methods by most of the candidates.

Candidates who had poor performance in this question provided incorrect responses in both parts of the question. In part (a), most of the candidates provided incorrect responses in relation to the meaning of the term biological weed control and the methods applicable in biological control of weeds. Examples of incorrect responses provided were: - *biological weed control is the control of weeds by not using chemical methods* and *biological weed control is the control of weeds by biological means*. Some of the incorrect responses regarding to the methods for biological control of weeds were: *uprooting of weeds, hand method, mulching, burning, spraying, crop rotation* and *early planting*.

In part (b), the majority of the candidates failed to classify herbicide on the basis of time of application. They provided incorrect responses like:- *In the morning, in the evening, during harvesting, during rainy season* and *during absence of sun.* Incorrect responses provided by the candidates indicated lack of knowledge on methods of weed control and classification of herbicides by most of the candidates. Extract 1.1.1 represents poor responses in the question.

Extract 1.1.1

0	
3.	a) Biological used control - is a method of
	we controlling used biologically without using
	the any chemicals of the farm.
	13 Method of biological weed control
	i) To cut the weed is by using a hoe.
-	(i) I To collect those weeds together
	(ii) To make a fire and also those ashes are
	act as a manure
	(b) Herbicides - Are chemicals used to control.
	weed on the farm.
	The best time of applying herbicides are
N	is its applied during there are no rainfall
	and climate every day is surrays.

Extract 1.1.1 shows a sample of poor responses from a candidate who performed poorly in this question. The candidate failed to provide correct responses in both parts of the question, signifying poor mastery of content.

On the other hand, candidates who performed well in this question gave correct responses to almost all parts of the question except in part (b) where most of them failed to explain the time of application for the classes of herbicides.

In part (a), the candidates clearly stated the meaning of biological weed control and correctly gave the methods applicable in biological control of weeds. Likewise in part (b), the candidates managed to classify herbicides on the basis of time of application but failed to give exactly the time of its application. Most of the candidates explained the time of application of preemergence and post-emergence herbicides as applied before planting and after planting, respectively. Provision of correct responses by candidates in this question is an indication that the candidates had good understanding of the methods of weed control and classification of herbicides. Extract 1.1.2 is a sample of good responses by one of the candidates.

Extract 1.1.2

and and a second se	
03	a. Biological weed control in the method of introducing
070	Quanisms in a fair so as to remove weeds. The fol-
Ren	lowing are the methods or biological weed control.
3 44	i Employ or birds-this is the introduction or
-240	birds such as chicken and ducks so asto
X	eat all gauses:
	ii. Use or animals- this is the use or animals in
	controlling weeds. Animal use is not very unitab-
	le because animals can ent crops.
	Ti. Use on injects - It is the introduction or injects
	such as Mites to feed on weeds.
	b. i. P.re-emergence herbicides- These are herbicides que
	ied toon after panting to kill weeds which are
1	already germinated.
-3	ii. Post- emergence, her bicides. These are perpicides ar-
	plied after seed germination to kill reds of we
	eds and not leaves

Extract 1.1.2 illustrates one of the candidates' good responses in the question. Good mastery of the content enabled the candidates to provide correct responses in both parts of the question.

2.2.2 Question 4: Animal Feeds and Feeding

The question had two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) outline six advantages of silage making, (b) (i) give the meaning of the term 'ration' as it is used in animal feeding and (b) (ii) account for any five factors to be considered in formulating rations.

The question was attempted by 7,706 (95.1%) candidates. The statistics show that 5,927 (76.9%) candidates scored 0 to 2.5 marks; 1,744 (22.6%) candidates scored 3 to 5.5 marks and 35 (0.5%) candidates scored 6 to 9 out of 9 marks in the question. The analysis indicates poor performance of the candidates in this question, considering that 1,779 (23.1%) candidates scored 3 to 9 marks. Figure 1.4 portrays the students' scores in the question.



Figure 1.4: Candidates' Performance in Question 4

As per Figure 1.4, the general performance of the candidates in this question was poor as 23.1 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. Poor performance of the candidates in this question was due to inadequate knowledge on animal feeds demonstrated by most of the candidates.

Candidates who did poorly in this question were unable to provide correct responses on the advantages of silage making in part (a) as well as giving meaning of the term 'ration' and factors to be considered when preparing a ration in part (b).

Examples of incorrect responses provided for the advantages of silage making in part (a) were: *it help animal to be strong and to have good health, used for development of animal, it help to reduce feed to animal and it provide energy and nutrient to animal.*

Moreover, in part (b) (i) the incorrect responses for the meaning of the term ration were such as *ration is the gap between one production and another*, *ration is the space where animal eat or feed*, *ration is the process of classify the animals, is the grouping the animal from their group, ration is the process where to control the animal* and *ration is the process that can be used from the farm to control pests and diseases to the soil.* In (b) (ii), the candidates failed to account for the factors to be considered in formulation of rations. They provided incorrect responses like *poor government support, low education, low level of science and technology, availability of skills knowledge, capital, market, management* and *equipment.* All these incorrect responses show that candidates did not have appropriate knowledge on animal feeds and feeding. Examples of poor responses provided by one of the candidates in the question are illustrated in extract 1.2.1.

40)	and its used for the food of livestock	1 Clone
	fodder.	
	It collected into the silo; Its is used for	
	animal production into the conservation or	
	animal plans in the country	
	It help people to get manue after enting	
	or the other adimals such as coats sheep	120
	attle and atte the secole and use the	1
	and cold other the people (and use the	
	It has an I to not the of the of the	
	It help animal to get food substance, his	
	means there the animal can get the food which	
	is there in a silo after few years or day.	
	therefore the advantage of silage are very	
	important things because its used for going	
-	food substance of animal in the society.	
	in the second se	
b (i)	Ration; Is the amount of of food substance	-
	which is \$ not excreted into the animal feed	
	(cline)	11
	and k	
()	Factor to be consider the in formulating rations.	
	i) Pour capital	
	i) Marketing	
	iii) Low rever of science and technology	al al
	"Poor transport and communication system"	
	J popr land.	

Extract 1.2.1 is a vivid example of responses from a candidate who lacked knowledge in the topic of animal feeds and feeding and hence provided incorrect responses in both parts of the question.

The candidates who performed well in this question provided correct responses in part (b) and failed to attempt correctly in part (a). In part (b) (i),

candidates gave correct meaning of the term ration and consequently accounted correctly the factors to be considered when formulating rations. This justifies that candidates had adequate knowledge on feed formulations.

However, in part (b) these candidates did not manage to outline advantages of silage making. Most of them provided incorrect responses such as: *source of livestock fodder, helps the farmer to feed animals during the early season, it is palatable to animals, source of income, source of nutrients to animal, it help the animal to produce a lot of milk, it protect silage and it save time.* Provision of incorrect responses in part (b) of the question is an indication that the candidates possessed inadequate knowledge in respect to fodder crops. Extract 1.2.2 exemplifies good responses in the question.

04.	(a) (i) this the source of ford to arisel.	4
	in the serves a painter during dry seeson to get animal.	
	treads.	
	this threadure wats of buying arinal feeds.	
	(iv) II provide network to eximals.	
	(is lit help in preparation of ration be a former.	
	(in) It help to increase and neintain with modulation -	
	in the parm.	
		2
1	& i) Pation Is the enound of theed gives to avoined her day	
	or within twette other (24) hours.	
	(ii) is True of ration forexemple, atomic should excited	
	which type of other is point to be prepared in it is mentionence	
	Induction or belonce returi & collar toods should be instrued the	
	in the storn.	
	Mit Type of animal before we have an wel stan a	

Extract 1.2.2

OLF	() former should of is & consider which type of animal is going	1.0
	to good & prepared ration, foremaple, it it is animal for	
	meet production of mills production cellan feeds should -	
	be involved.	
1.1	(iii) Arount of feed winture to be prepateed, before prep.	
	any mind feed a parmer should first consider the	
	enout of good with to be prepared forekemple	
	Is it is got good not so a perment should	ľ
	attus prepare los to opraine meet and lots of prote	
	in contents.	
	live Costs of feed vigredients to be used in a certent ration	
	Afoner should pirt ansider the capital and water	965 (
	of each kind of good mixture to be used in propa	
	rotion of ration. forexample if the cost for beinging.	
	total geed ingracients is Door Toh and the equital	
	arailable is 1500 for so the parmer should reduce	
	the encurt of feed ingradients,	
=	(V) There should be different feed ingraduent and the	1
	should be used per day A former should differt-	
	faid ingradients a as to get good wine Floor but	2
	also the ford prepared should be used per day.	

Extract 1.2.2 presents a sample of good responses from one of the candidates who managed to provide correct responses to part (b) but missed part (a). This indicates that the candidate had partial knowledge on the subject matter.

2.2.3 Question 5: Factors of Production

The question was divided into two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) (i) give the meaning of a factor of production, (a) (ii) analyze three characteristics of land as a factor of production and (b) examine four roles of entrepreneurship as a factor of production.

The question was attempted by 7,596 (93.8%) candidates of which 6,712 (88.4%) candidates scored 0 to 2 marks; 850 (11.2%) candidates scored 2.5 to 5 marks and 34 (0.4%) candidates scored from 5.5 to 8 marks out of the 8 marks allocated in the question. These data depicts poor performance of candidates in the question with 884 (11.6%) candidates scored 2.5 to 8 marks. Figure 1.5 represents the candidates' scores in the question.



Figure 1.5: Candidates' Performance in Question 5

With respect to Figure 1.5, candidates' performance in this question was poor as only 11.6 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. This was caused by inadequate knowledge possessed by most of the candidates on the factors of production.

The candidates who performed poorly in this question responded incorrectly in most parts of the question. In part (a) (i), most of the candidates failed to give the meaning of factor of production; with a few of them providing the correct meaning. Some of the incorrect responses provided by candidates in respect to the meaning of factor of production were: *area of living animals and human being, area for doing different activities like; fishing, mining and agricultural activities* and *actually act to be land, labour and marketing.* Likewise in part (a) (ii); most of the candidates failed to analyse the characteristics of land as a factor of production and consequently gave incorrect responses like 'control of soil erosion, increase cost of production, *increase soil fertility* and *control weeds*'.

In part (b), the majority of the candidates in this group also did not manage to examine the role of entrepreneurship as a factor of production. As a result, they provided incorrect responses such: *provision of employment, source of government revenue, growth of town and city* and *source of income*. This signifies that the candidates were not well acquainted with the subject matter

on factors of production. Extract 1.3.1 is an example of responses from one of the candidates who performed poorly in the question.



Extract 1.3.1

Extract 1.3.1 denotes a sample of poor responses in the question. The candidate provided incorrect responses in the whole question, indicating lack of knowledge on factors of production.

In contrary, candidates with good performance in this question responded correctly in almost all parts of the question. The candidates gave correct meaning of a factor of production in part (a) (i) and also analysed correctly the characteristics of land as a factor of production in part (a)(ii). However, a few of them were unable to analyse the characteristics of land as a factor of production. Thus, they ended up giving incorrect responses such as: land is endowed with vast mineral resources and land is unlimited.

In addition they examined correctly the role of entrepreneurship as a factor of production in part (b), showing competence in the topic on factors of production. Extract 1.3.2 is a sample of responses from a candidate who did well in the question.

Extract 1.3.2

5 Qui	Factors of production are resources which oreased	3
	in production soar toproduce goods and Services.	
1	and the bolady mind Fort of - baszall is bollow	714
(ii)	- Lond govern the distribution of crops in porticular	-
	place. The share and a share a family a second state	10
	- Different Syper Iplace contain different type I	5
	land for different type of crops and for different type	21
	I merket.	
	- The amount of rainfell is the one of the factor that	i)
-	govern the distribution of forming in Tanzania	
1.33	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	-
(6)	a Enterpresseur organized and manage other factors	
1111657	I production. Enterpreneur is the one that overseeing	
<u> </u>	all other factors & production and planning a certain	6,(9)
	production type produced ata certain time.	
	is Enterpreneur bear nick repulsing from his the	11
	action and responsibility. By controlling and querning	i.
	other factors the enterpreneur ship herd to take any	(0)
	not resulting from his then responsibility and decision	
	in the production	
	In the /she tractual a manage of a certain production,	
	Forder prenew is the one that short a certain production	A (d)
	ord is the one that gay wager, buy goods and other	
10	in the production.	
5 (6)	(iv) In ter preneurship hiver other factors of production.	協力チ
0.05	Hefshe fend to encourage and mobilize other factors	1
	Sprudichion sursh produce a certain good on Ferrices.	

Extract 1.3.2 portrays good responses in the question. The candidate was knowledgeable enough on the topic, thus provided correct responses in all parts of the question.

2.2.4 Question 6: Soil Formation

The question consisted of two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) (i) give the meaning of a soil profile, (b) (ii) briefly describe the 'O' horizon in a soil profile and (b) briefly explain three importance of soil profile in crop production.

The question was attempted by 7,700 (95.1%) candidates whereby; 6,823 (88.6%) candidates scored 0 to 2 marks; 833 (10.8%) candidates scored 2.5

to 4.5 marks and the remaining 44 (0.6%) candidates scored 5 to 7 of the total 7 marks allocated in the question. The candidates' performance in this question was poor due to the fact that 877 (11.4%) candidates scored 2.5 to 7 marks. Candidates' scores is shown in Figure 1.6.



Figure 1.6: Candidates' Performance in Question 6

Figure 1.6 portrays poor performance of the candidates in the question as 11.4 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. Candidates' poor performance in this question was caused by poor understanding of the concept of soil profile and failure to meet the demand of the question.

All parts of the question were incorrectly responded by the majority of the candidates who performed poorly in this question. In part (a) (i), the candidates failed to give the correct meaning of the term soil profile. Examples of incorrect responses from some of the candidates were: *soil profile is the process production which they consider, is negative logarithm of the soil within the earth surface soil* and *is the fines or coarseness of the soil particles within the soil.* Similarly, in part (a) (ii), candidates failed to give a description of 'O' horizon in the soil profile and provided incorrect responses such as: *the mature of indicator, to the profile in the agriculture* and *to understanding into the soil.* These responses justify lack of knowledge and field practical exposure on soil profile by candidates.

In part (b), most of the candidates explained the importance of soil by giving responses such as *it support plant growth, it provide nutrients to the plants* and *is a habitat to many living organisms* instead of explaining the

importance of soil profile in crop production. In this part, candidates failed to understand the demand of the question, thus provided responses that were not related to the demands of the question. Extract 1.4.1 represents poor responses from one of the candidates.

Extract 1.4.1

6	@ 1/ sui profile with percantage of the-	1 to
	suil partices and has four their zons which	
	is 'O' than 200, 'A' horrzon, 'B' horrzon, 'C' horrzon	
	29. Example of their horizons.	4
		-
	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	1
	v v – X	-
		1 deres
	Contraction of the second s	
	the state indians the story sub- with the	
	C	
	The second se	
6	@ 11/ & how zons - is the most best herizons because	
	it produces good which have good in equality	
	because it is a first horizon. and Hor-	
	Soil have enough numbrient.	
	(b) The following are the importance of -	
	suit pretite in Crop production	
	+14 help the crops to get nument	
	11/ It help the crops like maize to grow-	
	faster and develop well	1
	my up help the crops to get all basic.	
	need easily like aygen Light.	

Extract 1.4.1 shows a sample of candidate's poor responses. Lack of knowledge and field practical exposure on soil profile and failure to meet the demands of the question led the candidate to provide incorrect responses in all parts of the question.

However, the candidates who performed well in this question provided correct responses in almost all parts of the question, except in part (b) where

most of the candidates did not give good explanation on the importance of soil profile in crop production. Furthermore, candidates gave correct meaning of a soil profile and good description of 'O' horizon in the soil profile in part (a) (i) and (ii) respectively.

In part (b); the majority of these candidates correctly cited the importance of soil profile in influencing various physical and chemical properties of the soil, but failed to explain exactly how the physical and chemical properties of the soil are affected by the depth of the horizon in the soil profile. In general the candidates demonstrated good mastery in the topic. Examples of good responses in the question are shown in extract 1.4.2.



Extract 1.4.2 indicates one of the candidates' good responses in the question. The candidate showed good masterly of the topic on soil profile by providing correct responses in both parts of the question.

2.2.5 Question 7: Agricultural Extension

The question had two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) describe the characteristics of each of the following categories of innovation adopters: (i) late majority, (ii) early majority, (iii) laggards (iv) innovators, (b) (i) distinguish between adoption of an innovation and diffusion of an

innovation and (b) (ii) assess the significance of 'evaluation' and 'trial' in the process of adoption of an innovation.

The question was attempted by 5,480 (67.7%) candidates. The data show that 4,298 (78.4%) candidates scored 0 to 2 marks; 1,022 (18.7%) candidates scored 2.5 to 5 marks and 160 (2.9%) candidates scored 5.5 to 8 marks of the 8 marks allocated in the question. The general performance in this question was poor; due to the fact that 1,184 (21.6%) candidates scored 2.5 to 8 marks. Figure 1.7 shows the distribution of the students' scores.



Figure 1.7: Candidates' Performance in Question 7

Figure 1.7 denotes poor performance of candidates in the question. The data in the figure indicate that 21.5 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. The analysis revealed that incompetence of most of the candidates in mastery of the topic on agricultural extension was a major cause for the failure in the question.

Most of the candidates who performed poorly provided incorrect responses in all parts of the question. In part (a), the candidates incorrectly described the groups of innovation adopters. Examples of such incorrect descriptions were (i) late majority-*each of the person need to be a leader, these are people which involve in practicing a certain activity;* (ii) early majority- *they are easily to get knowledge, this is the group which will involve in the practicing of a certain activity after measuring or determining the late majority if they have got a profit or loss;*(iii) laggards- *they perform principle of one man one*

vote, are people who learn through mass media and (iv) innovators- they have ability to get new ideas, these are person who dealing with the process of transmitting knowledge from their practiced to the farmers. In part (b) (i) the candidates distinguished between adoption of an innovation and diffusion of an innovation incorrectly. An example of incorrect responses from one of the candidates were: adoption of innovation is the mental adoption from earning news and information, these are people which they adopt the same activity so as to determine if they will have a profit or loss if they adopt such activity while diffusion of innovation is include getting information from high state to low, the situation where the person decide to practice other determining the profit and the loss of such practice. Similarly, these candidates failed to assess the significance of 'evaluation' and 'trial' in the adoption process in part (b) (ii). Some of the incorrect responses given were such as: evaluation is the process of which adoption of an innovation and trial is process which adoption an innovation. This group of candidates lacked subject matter knowledge on agricultural extension as it is exemplified in extract 1.5.1 from one of the candidates who performed poorly in the question.





Extract 1.5.1 illustrates a sample of the responses from the candidate who responded incorrectly in the whole question due to lack of knowledge on agricultural extension.

Contrary to the candidates who performed poorly, the candidates who performed well proved to acquire adequate knowledge on agricultural extension as most of them provided correct responses in all parts of the question. In part (a), the candidates managed to give correct description of different named groups of innovation adopters. Moreover, these candidates correctly distinguished between adoption of an innovation and diffusion of an innovation in part (b) (i). The candidates also correctly assessed the significance of 'evaluation' and 'trial' in the adoption process in part (b)(ii). A sample of good responses in this question is illustrated in Extract 1.5.2.



7. (a) the adopters of (1 cite These are maron change their innovation u these Can not methods easilu change their methods until forma tions. COMPO CiD matority These are adopted innovations they 00 H tions things with their Ta. - They one cautious people They du coperat early add-0 pters (iii) Laggards-These cre ast people in coloinnovations. These one more traditiong-The 1,ste -They are more tionalists tradi to change their ready duing the people who adain Innova. These are than the othe INDOVO nos ear willin to terfre CINE 0000 the new innovations implement as mode nom early are regarder DP1 adopters

(h)(i)of an Innovation Diffi Juption 0 on innovation Droce SS Sau G arm and VP Soren icleg. SU methods Gi Significance of FVa to think inclivid partiink Or DOSi a particular SI on poly JG. See mpact usage such innovation 0

Extract 1.5.2 depicts a sample of responses in the question in which the candidate performed well in all parts of the question. This indicates that the candidates possess adequate knowledge on agricultural extension.

2.2.6 Question 8: Surveying

The question consisted of two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) (i) give the meaning of surveying, (b) (ii) state four purposes of surveying and (b) elaborate the functions of six instruments used in chaining method of linear measurement in surveying.

The question was attempted by 7,928 (97.9%) candidates; whereby 1,860 (23.5%) candidates scored 0 to 2.5 marks; 4,119 (51.9%) candidates scored 3 to 5.5 marks and 1,949 (24.6%) candidates scored 6 to 9 out of the 9 marks allocated to the question. The analysis shows good performance of the candidates in the question as 6,068 (76.5%) candidates scored 3 to 9 marks. Figure 1.8 represents the candidates' scores in the question.



Figure 1.8: Candidates' Performance in Question 8

Figure 1.8 shows good performance of candidates in the question in which 76.5 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. Good performance of candidates in the question is attributed to satisfactory knowledge and field practical skills possessed by most of the candidates on surveying.

Most of the candidates who performed well in this question responded correctly in almost all parts of the question. In part (a) (i), these candidates managed to give the meaning of surveying and consequently stated well the purpose of surveying in part (a) (ii). Likewise, the candidates managed to identify instruments used in chain surveying and elaborated correctly their functions in part (b). However, a few of these candidates failed to identify all the instruments, implying the candidates were well equipped with knowledge and field practical exposure on chain surveying. Extract 1.6.1 is an example of good responses provided in the question.

Extract 1.6.1

B	a proper le company a parale l'againer the la
	il Surveying - Is the process of observing
	and measuring inorder to determine sizes,
	boundaries, distances, positions and elevations
	of various features around the surveyed
	field
	il 1-10 determine positions of various features
	around the surveyed field
	- 10 determine horizontal and verticel
	clistences,
	- 10 determine physical and non-physical
1100	features around the surveyed field.
	- To obtain area of a surveyed field
	101-11-112 is due to merchance of it
	Halped date there Driver 2000 min the
	b- Chain - Used to Obtain horizontal meas-
-	urements
	- Langing pole - Used to align points in
	astraight like.
	- HANDLO-Used to mark the enclopedain
	lengiti
	- years - used to establish permanent station
	points abound the surveyed area
	1 Held note book - Used to record information

Extract 1.6.1 depicts a sample of responses from a candidate who did well in the question. The candidate got correct all the parts, signifying to be knowledgeable and skilled enough on surveying.

With respect to the group of candidates who did poorly in this question, the analysis showed that the candidates provided incorrect responses in all parts of the question. In part (a) (i), the candidates provided a variety of incorrect responses for the meaning of surveying. Some of the incorrect responses given in this part were: the scientific and systematic process of collecting, analyzing and interpreting data basing on a certain phenomenon, is the process whereby people move from one place to another to look the something and then to get the knowledge in this areas to go the surveying, is the branch of science which deals with the scientific methods of surveying of the people and is the process of choosing animals. In part (a) (ii); candidates failed to state the purpose of surveying, resulting into delivering wrong and

irrelevant responses. Examples of such responses were: *it save time, it consume time, is refreshment* and *is part of studies*. In part (b), candidates failed to elaborate the functions of the instruments used in chain surveying as per question. The candidates also failed to identify the instruments. Some of incorrect responses provided in this part were: *used for chain survey, used for the linear, improve mass education* and *provide chain and measurement*. These incorrect responses signify candidates' inadequate knowledge and field practical skills on chain surveying. Extract 1.6.2 is one of the candidates' poor responses in the question.

Extract 1.6.2

A the stand on the second but so that and the stand
81@ 1) Surveying Is the process where by the farmer
beasure the area and check them area
for the Many porpase example building form
for cultivation activities
il four parpose 7 Surveying
12 To charle the topograph 7 the and
13) To know the types of land for the agriculty
re activities
110, 10 lonow the land which activities are
Suntable in It'
iv) prepeare the farmer
b) Functions 7 linear measurement in Surpeying.
-It liced to measure distance.
-It liced to pleasure vetral and honzotal

Extract 1.6.2 presents a sample of the candidates' poor responses to the question. The candidate was unable to provide correct responses to both parts of the question. The candidate lacked knowledge and skills on chain surveying.

2.2.7 Question 9: Forestry Crops Production

The question comprised two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) (i) give the meaning of wood preservation, (a) (ii) briefly describe the cold dipping methods of applying preservatives and name two types of

wood for which the method is mostly used and (b) point out two advantages and four disadvantages of creosote oil as a wood preservative.

The question was attempted by 7,162 (88.4%) candidates of whom; 6,657 (92.9%) candidates scored 0 to 1.5 marks; 496 (7.0%) candidates scored 2 to 3.5 marks and 9 (0.1%) candidates scored 4 to 5 of the total 6 marks in the question. The performance of the candidates in the question was therefore poor, with only 505 (7.1%) candidates scored 2 to 5 marks. Figure 1.9 denotes the candidates' scores in the question.



Figure 1.9: Candidates' Performance in Question 9

According to Figure 1.9, candidates performed poorly in this question. Inadequate knowledge and lack of practical exposure on wood preservation were observed to contribute to poor performance in this question by majority of the candidates.

The candidates, who did poorly in this question, provided incorrect responses to the meaning of wood preservation in part (a) (i). Some of incorrect responses provided were; wood *preservation is the way of preserving wood for wood activities such as building, wood preservation is the technique to preserve wood for commercial purpose,* and *wood preservation this is the wood used for construction of house and other masonry in plumbing.* In part (a) (ii), the candidates were unable to provide correct responses for the description of the cold dipping method of applying preservatives on wood and types of wood in which the method is mostly used. As a result, they gave incorrect responses such as *application of oil*

and insoluble in water and water cold dipping means application of water on wood preservatives and named incorrectly hard wood and flat wood as the types of wood in which the method is mostly used.

In part (b), the candidates failed to provide correct advantages and disadvantages of creosote oil as wood preservative and provided incorrect responses such as *it is less cost compared to the method, it allows wood to be used in different activities* and *it is cheap and easier to practice* as advantages and *it is expensive, it need skill or knowledge, it take much power than capital, it requires much time for its application* and *it is litter therefore pure management tend to affect the health of human beings as disadvantages* of using creosote oil as a wood preservative. The incorrect responses provided by the candidates indicated candidates' lack of knowledge and skills on wood preservation. Extract 1.7.1 is a sample of poor responses in the question.

Extract 1.7.1

11		
901	(?) Wood preservation; I the process which used	
24	te conferve wood prolitier purpose. Example It make	
-	Environment confervatution it used to building construction	

-90-1	(ii) cold dipping method of applying preservatives)
	. Through Apovertation of treed because Apovestation	
	It is used parte preservatives wood for planting trees	
	when people to cutting tree you must be planting to	
	veplace of cutting trees.	
	· Through enacting laws and priciple in conjerved	-
12.9	wood because people you have introduce laws to	
	for reduce demeitation of Trees.	
100	· Avoid overgrazing because overgrazing can eq	5
	caule environmental pollution when pople to kept	
	many livetock is small area also live that can eating	
	trees in planting because of lack of pastures or led.	
	The following are the types of wood which the	
	method is mostly used	
	· Cort wood .	
	· Haid wood	
19	Court really realized and really and really and really and really r	5
9(6)	Two advantages as a wood prefervative.	
1-1	(1) wood preservative welp to building construction	
1	til wood prejervature help us source q fire wood for	-
1	ujed cooking	
	Four disadvantages	
	(i) Briging of wood can cauje paraliete and dejeage	
ι	which us pert to transmith difease.	
1	(ii) Low moduction potential	
200	(iii) shortage of Income	
	(i) chevitage of employment.	-
CI /		

Extract 1.7.1 is a sample of responses from a candidate who performed poorly in all parts the question showing lack of knowledge and skills on wood preservation.

The majority of the candidates, who performed well in this question, were able to provide correct responses to part (a) and (b), though not exhaustive. In part (a) (i), the candidates were able to give the correct meaning of wood preservation and description of cold dipping method of applying preservatives. In part (a) (ii) the candidates, likewise named correctly the two types of wood in which the method of applying preservatives is mostly used. The candidates also pointed out correctly the advantages of using creosote oil as a wood preservative, although they did not exhaust all the disadvantages of using creosote oil as a wood preservative in part (b). This justifies adequate knowledge and skills on wood preservation by the candidates. Extract 1.7.2 represents good responses in the question.

Extract 1.7.2

		use only
9.	a i) Wood Preservation is the application of chemia	ls
	on wood in order to prevent it from damage	
	Such as inserts, fung, and Marine bores.	
	ii) and dipping method of applying Preservatines	
	involver puting wood in a tornulated wood	
	Preservatives unheated outpoiled.	
	The tombers wood for which it is	
	suitable are	
	Leucadra wood	
	Minings wood.	
	J. (
	Pine wood	
	Mningg (The bleeding) wood.	
	b) Advantagerof creatore oil Wood Preservative.	
	0	
	it has good Renetration in the wood	
	It does not easily leach is wood.	
	Azadvantages	
	0	
	It has Strong Smell.	
	It is hard to apply in this Surfaces	
	it has colour, hence define wood abour quality	
	It is expensive and increase wood flammability.	

Extract 1.7.2 illustrates good responses in this question. However, the candidate missed one example of wood to be used in cold dipping method in part (a)(ii) and one advantage of creosote oil as a wood preservative in part (b).

2.2.8 Question 10: Soil and Water Conservation

The question had two parts (a) and (b). The candidates were required to (a) explain why soil erosion is one of the most serious problems in agriculture by giving three reasons and (b) briefly explain three forms in which water erosion occurs.

The question was attempted by 7,716 (95.3%) candidates of whom; 5,320 (68.9%) candidates scored 0 to 1.5 marks; 2,056 (26.7%) candidates scored 2 to 3.5 marks and 340 (4.4%) candidates scored 4 to 5 out of the total 6 marks allocated to the question. Candidates' general performance in this question was average; as 2,396 (31.1%) candidates scored 2 to 6 marks. Figure 1.10 illustrates the scores of the candidates in the question.



Figure 1.10: Candidates' Performance in Question 10

Figure 1.10 indicates average performance of the candidates in the question. Average performance in this question was contributed by partial knowledge on soil erosion acquired by most of the candidates.

Candidates with good performance in this question demonstrated adequate knowledge on soil erosion that enabled them to provide correct responses in all parts of the question. In part (a), the candidates precisely gave reasons that justify soil erosion as the most serious problem in agriculture. The candidates also explained correctly the forms in which water erosion occurs. Extract 1.8.1 exemplifies good responses in the question from one of the candidates.
Extract 1.8.1

lab	Soil ension when Most serious problem because of	S. 46.3
15 40	the following reasons.	
	a It removes the fertile soil leaving out the	(0)
	Soil Much has an mithert to Support Crop	
	and work the the second process of the the	-
	ALLOW T	
	-> it was too at , to hand appled for	1
	V q realles the all of the real authority	1. 191
	agric where are to parmation of many guines in	-
	the farm.	
Laster.	o sometime soil eronian removes out crops which	-
	are sown in the farm and thus affects the crop	
. 66	Production . 10 the the and a share the man	0
	to be structured .	1
CD	Chart Crasian,	
1	This cours invitoring the Lago of	-
	the fail water of formation of Channels. It occur	
	When a have amount of gip fall down sour within	
100	a Loil and thus Cause the renove the sole Layer	22
120	yniformly	0 130 1
	high and the place for a she was a chinese	7
	Rill Ension.	
	Water ender the soil Layer through small	
	Channels called rills. 4 o cuis after water	1
	eration by theet became content raded leading to	
	formation of channels.	
	C. M. Origin	1
	This hate action take black the	
	Chappele colled guillier That is to say the	9
	Till opping which to and concent we do to alling	
1	to the expanding of the champel	1
	and share by second ,	

Extract 1.8.1 is a sample of a good responses from a candidate who in the question. The candidate provided correct responses to all parts, hence demonstrated good mastery of the topic on soil and water conservation.

On the other hand, most of the candidates with poor performance in the question provided incorrect responses in all parts of the question. In part (a), these candidates failed to give correct reasons that as to why soil erosion is the most serious problems in agriculture where they give incorrect responses such as *deforestation, overgrazing, mining activities, monoculture, bush fire* and *flooding.* Moreover, the majority of the

candidates failed to explain the forms in which water erosion occurs; some of them giving incorrect responses like *irrigation*, *hydraulic action*, *by abrasion process*, *deforestation* and *air pollution*. This shows that the candidates lacked competence in the mastery of the topic on soil and water conservation as portrayed in extract 1.8.2 from one of the candidates who had poor performance in the question.

Extract 1.8.2

10. a) - because when using the soil in the wary be Cause numenta removed erosion be cause people are carting distroy the - water crosion is occurs cause Stream le are couting Shru - water erosion have H.o fle rain fall

Extract 1.8.2 indicates candidate's poor responses to the question in which he/she failed to provide correct responses to the whole question, implying lack of subject matter knowledge on soil and water conservation.

2.3 SECTION C: ESSAY TYPE QUESTIONS

2.3.1 Question 11: Crop protection

In this question candidates were required to write an essay examining advantages, disadvantages and safety precautions in using agro - chemicals.

The question was opted by 2,077 (25.6%) candidates of which; 911 (43.9%) candidates scored 0 to 5.5 marks; 959 (46.1%) candidates scored 6 to 12.5

marks and 207 (10%) candidates scored 13 to 18 marks out of the total 20 marks in the question. These statistics show average performance of the candidates since 1,166 (56.1%) candidates scored 6 to 18 marks. Figure 1.11 shows the distribution of the candidates' scores.



Figure 1.11: Candidates' Performance in Question 11

Figure 1.11 shows that average performance of the candidates in this question, was due to lack of full package of knowledge and practical experience in respect to application of agro-chemicals as a chemical method in controlling weeds and pests.

The candidates with good performance in this question met the requirements of the question by providing correct responses. Most of the candidates correctly examined the advantages and advantages of using chemicals in controlling weeds and pests. In addition, the candidates outlined correctly the safety precautions to be considered when applying agro - chemicals. However, some of the candidates did not exhaust all the safety precautions required. This implies that the candidates had enough knowledge and practical experience in the use of agro - chemicals in controlling weeds and pests.

Good command of English language facilitated these candidates to clearly explain their points. Moreover, the candidates demonstrated essay organizational skills that enabled them to arrange well the responses into introduction, main body and conclusion with exception of a few candidates who failed to conclude well their essays. Extract 1.9.1 is a sample of responses from a candidate who did well in the question.

Extract 1.9.1

11. Woods and pest are great enomies in crop production. To examine	
the use of chamical method in controlling weeds and pests by	5
citing on it's eight advantages, five disadvantages and the seven	6
safety premutions in using of agro-chemicals.	0
when which have the trade to be applied in the field when	1
I a set as a first a present the set of a set of a set	
Weads are the plants. Which grow in the area where	
that are not wanted. Pest is any living organism which	
destroy crops directly or indirectly by producing organism	
Which roused diseases. Chemical method in controlling weed and	
pest is the method in which chemical substance is used in centraling	19
of pest and useds. The following are the advantages of chemical	bel
method un controlling weeds and posts. discussed as follows:	
It is effective method in controlling of weeds and	
pest, this is because of the chemical substance when	n i
cupplied in the soil its lad to the directly destruction or	- 41
suppression growth of weeds. than others method.	
It help to control soil structure, the chemical method	11
in controlling weads and posts help to controlling soil	ef
formation or structure due to the chemical substance when	···)
it's applied in the field it led to their soil to be maintained	
on this structure,	

11 .	It is very easy method to controlling pests and weeds	1 1001
	than others methods like cultural used and post control,	-
	this is because of the most of chemical substance is	
	applied with no physical strengt and hence be the method	
	that is easy to the controlling of pest and woods.	
	less labour are required, in the chanizal method	
of Cash	of controlling yeads and post's less tabour are required to	
	spraying chemical substance in the field and hence led to the	3
	small number of labour are needed in application of either herbidde	
	a pesticides .	1
	It take short time to supressing of used compared with	4 · M.
	others mothed, in chemical method of controlling week and pest	
and the second	the time taken to apply the chemical is short compared to	<u>.</u>
	other method like Anult mulching as the method of cultural weed	
	control, which take long time to be applied in the field.	
	bes not expose the soil to agent of soil enosion, this is	
	because of the application of chemical substance in the soil	
	does not disturb the soil and hence reduce occurance of	
	soil erosion in the field. do also also a almost more with	
	Voes not disturb the roots of the crops; the chanical	
	method of controlling pests and weeds does not dusturb or	A
	destroy the roots of the crops since the chemical is applied on	<u>b</u>
	the surface of the soil and not inside the soil.	***
	It's cheap compared with others methods interm of time, the	
	chemical method of controlling pests and weds is cheap in	4 4
	term of time compared with others methods in which it	12
	takes short to be applied in the soil rather than others	Real -
	method like cultural or mechanical weed control this takes long	
	time compared with chemical nethod of avoids and posts	p
	Controll.	<u></u>
	scientificant of the first fritte at hat the black with the bolision it	

11.	Those are the advantages of chemical method of pest and	11
	weed control. But the following are the disaduantages of chemical	
	mothed of weeds and pests controll discussed as follows:	
	High skills and knowledge is used to apply the	1
	herbiade and postivides, by which the postivide is used in	1
	controlling of pest and herbraides used in controlling of weeds.	
	in Which the farmers Uses knowledge in order to apply the	
	chemical substance in the field	
	Need trained people or person, in chemical mothed	
	of pest and weeds controll there is the needs of trained	
	person to the application of either herbicide and pesticides	1
	in order to controlling of weeds and pests.	
	Led to the environmental pollution, this is because of the	
	chemical applied in the field can be led to the environmental	
	pollution like water pollution and led to the death of acquain	
	Strateging Chargener and territory the their here. Service . Surging to	_
	It is poisonous to man and livestacks, the chemical	
	Which are applied in the field can be the poisonous to man	
	and livestock as the man eating the plant sprayed with	
	charbraide or pesticide it may led to that man to die.	
	It is expensive method interm of money, the sprayed	
	chemical control method is expensive because there is the need	
	of buying chemical substance and also there is the need of	
	builting spraying equipment which increases cost.	
	Those are the disadvantages of chemical method in	
6.3	controlling words and pests - But the following are the seven	
	safety precaution in use of agro-chemicals dr as discussed as fellows:	
	the head the Manufacture instruction and follow than?	
	in safety prearition of using of agro-chemicals the farmor	B
	Must read the manufacture instruction and tellow them in	1
	order to have knowledge on how to using correct or	
	specific amount of the chemical substance.	-

11.	Meaning protective clothes, the protective clothes	.11
	like bread and veils and gloves must be wearing in	
	order to be safe when using the herbrade or perticides.	The
	in which the protective dothes is upaning since after being	
	Mixing the chemical substance.	
	Keep away from children the chemical substance should	
	be kept away from children as the children may early	
	drinking the chemical substance and hence can tause death to	
	that childrens.	22
	All spraying equipment must be washed after end of each	D
	working time, the splaying equipment must be washed in	
	order to maintain it's quality and prevent for them to	
	be damaged easy and in short time.	
	Spraying equipment must not washed in the water sources,	1
	Water sources like down, lakes and overs in which when	1
	the spraying equipment are washed in the vator source it may	
_	lad to the doath of acquatic organism like fish.	12
	All chemicals substance should be kept away from food,	1
	as when it kept near the food, it may led to that	
	tend to be contaminated with chemical substance. and have	8
1	when the man eating that food led to the darth of that	
	man after eating of ted contammated with chaning substance	-
	All chemicals must be mixing in correct amount or specific	0
	rate, the chemical substance like horbicides and postraide ane.	1
	mixing in correct properties amount or at specific rate in order	1
	to do not cause any regarive effects to the crops.	Sugar Li
	Trenerally those are the safety precaution of using of	2
	agro-chemical like berbizides and pesticides. By Which there	
	are anothers methods that used in controlling of onoppest and	nt .
	weeds which are biological control method cultural	M
	control method, physical control method and legislative	0
	control method.	-

Extract 1.9.1 illustrates responses from a candidate who performed well in the question. The candidate organized well the essay and met the requirement of the question.

However, the candidates who performed poorly in this question failed to provide correct responses in most parts as per question. The candidates provided incorrect responses for the advantages of agro-chemicals such *improve industrial development, increase government revenue, facilitate tourism, source of employment* and *help to improve social services*. The incorrect responses provided for the disadvantages of agro-chemicals were: *weeds may block source of water, may harbor pests and diseases, increase cost of production, compete with crop plants for space, air and water.* The candidates also incorrectly gave the safety precaution in using agro-chemicals such as; *the soil must be well drained, chemicals must be applied two times, use of mulching, it should be above 18 years in order to prevent occurrence of diseases of people through using chemicals.* This is an indication that the candidates lacked knowledge and skills on the use of agro-chemicals in controlling weeds and pests.

The candidates demonstrated poor essay organizational skills in such a way most of them failed to arrange the essays into introduction, main body and conclusion. The candidates also used poor English language. Extract 1.9.2 is an example of responses from the candidate who had poor performance in the question.

Extract 1.9.2

11	Where and perils, used is the process	11
	where by ford and enop some and weating	
	and perf examine the use of chemical per	
	thad in controlling goods and part by city.	
	ng on its eight of advantages of preeds	
	found of face for animal like page	
	some weeds, and same of food for animal lo	
	to pigs to development of pig because werd	
	are the pood of oral aromal beer	-
	provide employment, some wead 24	
	proceeded employ ment for the people also be	
	gre of some weed at get the grans to go to	
	markent to bus ness at fair money for having	
	needs for the people some weed are get extern	
	ment to the people top production	
	source of medicine some wead are	
	source of moducine top the people of neem	
	avecano of the pain in the sten people can	
	avoiding the pain in the body also wead	
- She	help to sture of medocine.	
	some weed provide sore erasion	
	allo wear a provide soit ension for the	
	land pollonation many weed at e provi	
	de rore enoribil becau intrig bees arepla	
	prove it telp to de velopment of trees.	
	oburg of income, also weeds	
-	et source of mome for the development of	
	pronomication til und other for develo	
-	pmaris of activities for arinal andply	
	the for development	
-	Jourd of foreign and reiver, also	
	Hour more are more of forender onlight	

Some wed are source of food 11 also yee eow lok animal e pid to na the (ontro) development poor gannal to avoid the funitifa beecer allo Janzania. in animal proved row ma tenal werd Some provide row materia 101 Some weed 13 economic developmon the development q elisadiantage of pr owing chemic Pautions in three ou R \mathbf{n} mal are thou a 200 are too development They DNOC some weed are proc Lopment are not to develop crop 100 , som They are roto stor crop rotation ta used save not pland eninal development 01 medicinefor are 1009 They avoid the ded AN BECIGINIC ase Hee sall of m some 2 bas cu 107 many WRR Unemployment Janzania poor employment in the eve not Janza nug. to the peup 04 anomal alte bog 201 to animals someweeds are not poor tood are Soil ension, pour devel pm soil ension Le cause ne caused of at people tainaly, been Some are animal WER 901 source of tood

Extract 1.9.2 is a sample of responses from the candidate who failed to organize his/her essay as well as missing all parts of the question. This indicates candidates' lack of knowledge and skills on use of agrochemicals.

2.3.2 Question 12: Agricultural Marketing

In this question candidates were required to write an essay explaining benefits of marketing cooperatives to farmers and problems facing marketing cooperatives in Tanzania. The question was opted by 3,807 (47%) candidates. The statistics indicate that 3,092 (81.2%) candidates scored 0 to 5.5 marks; 714 (18.8%) candidates scored 6 to 12.5 marks and only 1 candidate scored 14 marks out of 20 marks in the question. These data illustrate poor performance of candidates in the question. The data show that 715 (18.8%) candidates scored 6 to 14 marks. Distribution of candidates' scores is shown in Figure 1.12.



Figure 1.12: Candidates' Performance in Question 12

In view of Figure 1.12, the performance of the candidates in the question was poor due to the fact that most of the candidates had inadequate knowledge on marketing cooperatives.

Inadequate knowledge on marketing cooperatives led the candidates with poor performance in the question to provide incorrect responses. Examples of incorrect responses provided by the candidates for the benefits of forming marketing cooperatives to farmers were: *it increase agriculture sector, increase economic activities, keep people busy in the activities and enable farmers to acquire loan from financial institutions.* With respect to the problems facing marketing cooperatives in Tanzania, the candidates gave incorrect responses such as: *it control the farmers, cause change in demand and supply because it can change at any time, source of raw materials for other industries, increase the internal relationship between the farmers and sellers or whole sellers and some farmers can produce crops which are not needed at that time.*

In most of the essays provided by these candidates, the introduction, main body and conclusion parts were not clearly defined. Moreover, in explaining their points, most of the candidates in this group used poor English language whose sentences could not be understood. Extract 1.10.1 represent poor responses in the question.



12:	farm cooperative Merketing is the place	9 B
	where bemand and Supply was present.	
	The following are the benefits and problem	
	Facing Martaeting the followin are Senefits	
- slab	Good Guality of deurand and Supply:	.)
-	this means that supply and deavand was.	
	Very preasent in the plarticiting	
	A farm well get the new idea This	
C. A.	Means that to the world to be looperative	
	the venanter to your Marketing and to -	
	looporative the idea to farmers.	3
	former well ket Capital This Means that	
	for the process of cleanad and supply the -	
	famer well get Captel. in the Mortaling	
- 0	Good forming support this Meurs that	
	in the cooperative Martanting law gervice	
-	was very than so it is apotant in the.	X
	Mortanting and to dieal to farmer	
	Inprovement of Science and Jedurofr.	
	This means that in the Mortcenting -	
0	Cooperatives and and and	
0	Good hof agtires this Means in the	
	Proces of Markenting Copperative people Well.	
12-101	get the infacture and remeder to use	-
	the placenting Corperative	
	farmer well get employment this;	14
	Means that in the Morketing Cooperative	
	former to get applyment: "So this	1. 1
-	Is the Generots the problem as follows	
1000	for capital meetiment this	14
1	Allens Heart in He Agricathra _	
	apprative capital was not present	_

Cience ecline the Marke tiny Meins loopera Flet úhere tive the Poor Science a the 4 Kare u techno this Means ñ Cala Sor the tono lall are Was not ver. basic The Man Door the. S Mu Merke ting 20 Von 0 20 The Mens 1 orla Whi Dor Very awre Her ting 01 100

Extract 1.10.1 is a sample of poor responses to the question. The candidate provided incorrect responses in all parts of the question. This indicates that the candidate had inadequate knowledge on cooperatives.

Good performance by candidates who did well in this question was attributed to good mastery of the content. In this question the candidates provided correct benefits of forming marketing cooperatives. They also identified correctly the problems facing marketing cooperatives in Tanzania; though some of them did not come up with all the problems. This is an implication that candidates were knowledgeable enough on cooperatives. Furthermore, candidates in this group used good English language to explain their points in well-organized essays. Good command of the English language was an added advantage to them in explaining their points in well understood sentences. Extract 1.10.2 is an example of responses from a candidate who did well in the question.

Extract 1.10.2

12	Cooperatives-istue pro Volutary	
	business organization which operate	
	the principal of one man one vote	
	the following are benifits of the 60 peratures	
1 and 10	Reduce middle neur profit. So that	
	the farmer can get large share of the	
	Sale proce	
	Improve bargaining power of the	
	farmer for better price this means that	
	through cooperative the farmer can	and the second
	Improve bargaining power thus lead to the	
	development of the farmer and	
	make investinient storage and processing	· · · + ·
	facilitatues as possible this reduce the	
	wastage of the farmer produce	
	in day or perannum	1000
	facilitates smooth marketing for the	1
	farmer thus mean that through cooperative	
	the farmer can get Smooth marketing	
	to sell their product	1
	Farmer can sell their praduce in bulk and	1
	Obtain benefit of producet bulk sale thus	der an
	Means that through this cooperative	TIT
	the farmer get opportunities to sell their	5
	produce in bulk and get advantage of it	1 -
0	Baldhhandling of produce fall litate	
	grading of produce and improve Dacka	1
<u></u>	iganing Standard thus mean that	31
	through copperative the farmer lan	
140	get balk handling and improvement	
515	of Packaigaining Standard	
	help inchanneling input and creditor to the	

17'	former thus means that through conservitive	(n)s]
10.	People can creat channeling input	1
	and are ditor to the former this may	/4
	influence efferciency to the farmer.	1
	reserved. Prolimmer in agriculture.	
	Juit erosion H remark the soil	
	analy contract metricent Aures marin	
	are party from benifits but also there is problem	4
	as follows.	
	Lack of Fand to finance the objective this	1912
	means that through lack of fund the people	A
	may fail to fance their disective in darly	d'
1	life so the goverment should be provide fund to people	
	lack of shilled manangement personel: this	
	means that there was lack skilled manange	
	ment personel so the education should	
	be given to the people	
	corruption in day to day running projection	
	this means that through corruption people	Peter-
	may not developed so may be avoided to	11/2-
	the society also in our country.	1.16
73	Risk and uncertainity in agricultural sector.	leght.
	This means that through rusk and uncertain,	0
	ty agrocultural sector people may fail to	1
	to develop. Jo thus may avoided inorder to develop	11
	Lack of track and lornes to transport their product	110
	this means that through lack of lorries People	11
	may fail to transport their good.	13-2
	- price fluctuation in locally and internationally this	6
Um	means that through fall of prace fluctuation	v1
	In locally and internally the faimer cannot developmend.	The case
L	Generally there are many bonifits and prolom in agriculture.	Maria

Extract 1.10.2 shows a sample of responses from the candidate who performed well in this question. The candidate organized well the essay with correct responses, showing to be knowledgeable enough on marketing cooperatives.

2.3.3 Question 13: Dairy Cattle Production

In this question candidates were required to write an essay (a) describing procedures in preparing the cow for milking and milking process using hand milking system and (b) give seven essentials for clean milk production.

The question was opted by 1,982 (24.5%) candidates whereby; 1,221 (61.6%) candidates scored 0 to 5.5 marks; 707 (35.7%) candidates scored 6 to 12.5 marks and 54 (2.7%) candidates scored 13 to 17 out of the 20 marks allocated to the question. The analysis indicates an average performance of the candidates in the question since, 761 (38.4%) candidates scored 6 to 17 marks. Figure 1.13 illustrates candidates' scores in the question.



Figure 1.13: Candidates' Performance in Question 13

Figure 1.13 shows that 38.4 percent of the candidates scored an average of 30 marks and above. Partial knowledge and lack of enough exposure to field practical skills on hand milking process by most of the candidates made to have average performance.

Most of the candidates who did well in this question had correct responses in both parts. In part (a) of the question the candidates gave correctly the procedures for preparing the cow for milking. However, a few number of students left apart some of the procedures to be followed in the milking process itself. In part (b), most of the candidates correctly gave the essentials for clean milk production. Generally, these candidates showed to possess adequate knowledge and field practical experience on milking process as most of them explained their points in well understood sentences in wellstructured essays. Extract 1.11.1 illustrates good responses from a candidate who did well in the question.

Extract 1.11.1

13	milking the process of remaining the	
	milk how the cons who is readly produce	52
1880	milk either by hands or machines	
5	The polaning are portedure inbolued	
1.80	10 pepaning cons har milking and milling	1600
	process using hand multing system.	
Neg .	i) Assemble all milking equipments	
21/2	such as buckets, milking cans and hurd.	
TAD	i) put the animal is a mulking shed	
0.552	and restrain appropriately	
	iii) was If the udder and teats by using	19
(lean narm water mining with a sanihing	1.1
105	agent	
	is) by the udder by using clean toweld	1
	1) Use the strip aps check by masting	_
	by drawing instream of milk hom each teach	¢
	Vi Camping milking of an animal	1
	vij lie as Dip the milk into anti-	
	Maghtis solution	
	Viii) De teas the corus Apply the milking	
_	jewelling to te each teach	
	ix) Release the levis	
	x) weight and record the milk	
	xis was hall equipment used in	
	milling include milking parlour	

milk production 12 6) seven essentials py clean - keep animal healthly free from difease tuber colosis such as mashil animal Hanter, and Udder was h tu Sumounding the region uadder and and Using warm water clean teah shed D dean all the - Ensure milking times The milling mans and urmans should preferable, dressed with white over deas be all washing stentize all mollare equip and untensil by using dertagents and ment disinfectant. Filter the After milking milk and temper ahre of about 4% the - Finally put the milk ina cooldn into the collection deliver tot it p'lace or place.

Extract 1.11.1 represents a sample of responses from a candidate who attempted well the question. The candidate showed to possess adequate knowledge and field exposure on the milking process.

Most of the candidates who performed poorly in this question provided incorrect responses in all parts of the question. Examples of such incorrect responses provided by the candidates for the procedures involved in preparing the cow for milking were: *the age of the cows, the length of the cows, the health of the cows, docile cows,* while the incorrect responses for procedures in the milking process using hand milking system were like: *milk protein milking system, milk fat milking system, milk wastes milking vinegar, milk vitamin milking system, the physiological status of the cow, animal breed, effect of climate and, lactation period* in part (a). Inadequate knowledge and field practical skills on the milking process contributed to poor performance in this question.

In part (b), the candidates failed to give the essentials for clean milk production. The candidates responded incorrectly by giving responses such as: *yoghurt, ghee, ash, butter, cheese* which are products of milk. Most of these candidates possessed poor command of English language and essay organizational skills. Extract 1.11.2 is a sample case for poor responses in the question.

Extract 1.11.2

12	all adult to be a set of the set
12	Lows for milkingine those cattle rised
0.5	for milk production only and sometimes are
	called dairy cattle. The following are procedure
	envolved in milling prepuring the cows for
	milling.
Ø	To make the good ration for dairy
V	cattle; This is because the some clairy cattle
	have the ability to store a lot of mithe beca
	use of good rate ration of feeding.
	To provide some nutrient which
	help drainy cattle to produce high amount
	of milk because some milk have their are
	a lot of nutrient because its not only milk
	some milk have not any nutrient.
	The dairy cattle do not walk to
	high distance to find the feeds; because the
0	ose distance it affect the production of mille

10	It must be able to be kept around the home	
13	in order to get a lot of milk because those	
	milk its important in various duties.	
	The dairy cattle must be able to adopt	1.5
	be the environment because the some cattle can	
	adapt I in the area which have high temperature	
	and some cattle can add adapt in the area	1
-	which have low temperature so due to those	,
-	Some challenges it cause the dairy cattle	
	to fad in production of milk.	
	To check the health of livestock every	
	day because no Some ticks can affect the	
	health of livestock so in order to reduce those	
	effect of health the government must be able	
	to pade provide the medicine used to control	
	those ticks apart from those procedures they	- U
	have essential of clean milk production	
	Mille have na provide protein to human bady	
	so the milk are more important and the improveme	
	nt of methodating cattle are necessary	
	The milk contains some mineral nutrient	
	which help human body to grow very fast so	
	their human body without milk it make them	
	to improve lack some nutrient.	
	It provide some money to pastaralim	
	some pastoralism can get alot of money bec	
	ause they make a good system of milk	
	production.	
	_ source of foreign exchange; the	
	milk production is more important becau	
	se they have some par foreign exchange with	
	in the country through mills production	
12	Source of economic development; The	1
12	economic development ras rise through keeping	122
	dairy cattle in high percentage through the	1-
	those enemies benefit the prople must impro	
	ve the economic activities	
	Therefore the milk are more important	
	because they can make the people to more	
-	certain activities:	
-	the shift of the second second but the second	

Extract 1.11.2 portrays poor responses in the question. The candidate provided incorrect responses in all parts of the question due to inadequate knowledge and practical skills in milking process.

3.0 ANALYSIS OF THE CANDIDATES' PERFORMANCE ON EACH QUESTION IN 034/2 - AGRICULTURAL SCIENCE 2

3.1 SHORT ANSWER QUESTIONS

3.1.1 Question 1: Crop Production

The following specimens were provided to the candidates: A- Sweet pepper, B- Pawpaw Plant, C- Moringa seeds, D- Sesbania plant, E- Couch grass, F-Sweet potato tuber, G- Banana suckers, H- Sweet orange fruit and I-Pineapple fruit. Candidates were required to (a) (i) identify each of the specimens A, B, F, H and I by their botanical names, (ii) give reason why it is not advised to plant more than one variety of specimen A at the same place at a time, (iii) distinguish three types of specimen B by its flowers (iv) state the male: female plant ratio for specimen B to be observed in farming, (v) give reason why it is not recommended to apply Nitrogenous fertilizer for growing of specimen F, (vi) name six commonly grown specimen H varieties in Tanzania, (vii) give four common names of most frequently occurring pests of specimen H and (viii) briefly explain the three types of vegetative propagation materials for specimen, (b (i) identify each of specimen C, D and E by their botanical name and (ii) give five benefits of specimen D to a farmer and in part (c) (i) explain how many suckers are recommended to be left in a stool of specimen G and (ii) give two names of suckers recommended to be left in a stool of specimen G.

The question was opted by 4,438 (54.9%) candidates of which; 2,971 (66.9%) candidates scored 0 to 7 marks; 1,316 (29.7%) candidates scored 7.5 to 16 marks and only 151 (3.4%) candidates scored 16.5 to 22.5 marks out of the allocated 25 marks in the question. Basing on this statistical data, the general performance of candidates in this question is average since 1,467 (33.1%) candidates scored 7.5 to 22.5 marks. Figure 2.1 represents the candidates' scores in the question.



Figure 2.1: Candidates' Performance in Question 14

Figure 2.1 shows that 33.1 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. It was observed from the analysis that, most of the candidates did not master all of the topics in the field of crop production that led to such average performance.

The candidates who performed well provided correct responses in many parts except in part (a) (iv), (vi) and (c). Besides of providing correct responses in part (a)(i) and (b)(i), some of the candidates failed to follow the scientific rules of naming organisms. For example, some the candidates wrote <u>Impomea Batatas</u> instead of <u>Ipomea batatas</u>, in which they did not follow the rule in writing scientific names. In another example, one candidate wrote <u>Ananas comosus</u> instead of <u>Ananas comosus</u> where in the first name the candidate failed to follow the rule that the two names should be underlined separately. Provision of correct responses by most of the candidates in most parts of the question items signify that the candidates had adequate knowledge and practical skills on the topics from the field of crop production from which the question was drawn.

In part (a) (iv), most of the candidates were unable to state the male: female plant ratio for specimen B (pawpaw plant) by its flowers and gave incorrect responses such as 1:1, 1:2 and 1:3. Similarly in part (a)(vi) the candidates also failed to name six commonly grown varieties of specimen H in Tanzania. Incorrect responses given in this part were like *hybrid*, *short term variety and long term variety*. In these parts, the candidates demonstrated

inadequate knowledge on production of pawpaw and varieties of sweet orange.

In addition, these candidates did not manage to give the number of suckers to be left in a stool of specimen G ((banana sucker) and names of suckers recommended to be left in a stool of specimen G in part (c)(i) and (c)(ii) respectively. In part (c)(i), most of the candidates recommended either one or two suckers to be left in a stool of specimen G, while in part (c)(ii), the incorrect names provided for suckers recommended to be left in a stool of specimen G included *buds*, *axils and bulbils*. This implies that the candidates lacked knowledge and practical skills on reproductive structures in banana. Extract 2.1.1 denotes one of the good responses in the question.

Extract 2.1.1

1	(a) (i) Specimen, A, B, F	H und I are identified by	
	their botanical names as	follows .	
	Specimen	Botanical nume	
	A (sweet seaver)	Capsieum annum.	
	B(Paw paw plant)	Carica papava :	
	· (Manage Condi)	papaya	
	E (sugat actata types)	Tomas hatatas	
	H (funct across fout)	Citrur sinearing	
	T (Pice rate (+ +)	Anony company	
	- (rine apple fruit)	comojaj	
	V.		-
	GULL := + 1 1 +	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
	(i) IT is not advised th	o plant more than one variety	
	of specimen A lower pepp	er) at the same place at	14 L
	a time because sweet	pepper tend to cross pollinale	-
	and give poor quality	yields after cross pollination	6
	(iii) specimen B (pawpaw)	plant) is of three types	
	which are distinguished	by its flowers as	
_	follows	,	_
	1. Male flowered plants	these have long flower	
	at as compared to fem	ale flowered pumpum plants.	
	They produce male repro	ductive cells.	
	2. Female flowered plants,	these have short flowers	1.22
	as compared to male pl	ants. They produce fruits when	
	planted near male flowe	red pan pan plants.	
	,	, , , ,	
	3. Hermaphrodite flower	ed par par plants, these	
	have both male and fe	male flowers - They can	
	produce fruits by themse	elver forexample sola	
	variety of now now non	at.	
1	part part part	· · · ·	

(b) (ii) The following are fiver benefits of specimen 1 O (Serban plant) to a former; s. It increases the fertility of the soil fixing nitrogen through not nodules since it is a legume plant 2. It's branches and stems can be used as firewood by man a t 3. It's seeds and leaves are sised as food by man in some pocceties. 4.11 can be used for feeding livestock since it is a concentrate containing plant due to high tevel of protein. 5. It can be used in alley cropping hence acting as wind break to some plants like beans, maize and pepper. () i) Two or three suckers are recommanded to be left in a stool of specimen G (Banana) (ii) Two names of suckers left in a stool of specimen G (Bangra) are; 1- Sword Juckers 2. Water suckers

1	(a) (iv) The male female plant ratio for specimen	1.
	B to be observed in farming is 1:25-30	
	(V) It is not recommended to apply nitrogen fertili-	
	zer for growing specimen & because the nitrogen	
	fertilizer encourages development of the shoot	
	the system and discourages development of	
	sweet notate tuberous noots.	
	(vi) Six common varieties of precimen H in	
	Tanzania are	
	(2)	
	in its an end and to war Ander a prese.	
	(vi) Six commonly grown specimen H (Sweet orange	
	fruit) varieties in Tanzania are;	
	(a) Jaffa	
	(b) Valencia	
	(c) Pineapple	
	(d) Mutambo sweet	
	(e) Washington viper	
	(4)	
	entente al anna sur sur sur antente	
	and the second state of th	
	(vii) Four common names of most frequently occuring	
	pests of specimen H are	
	(a) Red scales	
	(b) Green scales	
	(c) citris aphids.	
	(d) Nematodes.	
	(viii) The three stypes of vegetative propagating	
	materials of or specimen I(pineapple) are;	

Extract 2.1.1 indicates a candidate's good responses. The candidate managed to give correct responses to most parts of the question. However, he/she failed to give correct responses in part (a) (iv) (vi) and (c).

The candidates, who performed poorly in this question, provided incorrect responses to almost all parts of the question. In part (a) (i), most of the candidates failed to give botanical names for the specimens given. For example one candidate wrote <u>Impomea batetus</u> with spelling error instead of the correct name <u>Ipomea batatas</u> for specimen. In part (a)(ii) the incorrect responses given were like; *each variety grows according to nature of climatic condition and nature of the soil and competition of nutrients with plants, self-pollination* as reasons for why

it is not advised to plant more than one variety of specimens A (sweet pepper). In part (a) (iii), green flower, white flowers and yellow flowerer were examples of incorrect responses provided for the types of specimen B by its flowers. In part (a) (iv), most of the candidates also failed to state the male: female plant ratio for specimen B to be observed in farming and gave responses such as: *male 1 ratio, female 3 ratio, male grow faster than the female plant* for male: female plant ratio to be observed in growing pawpaw plant. Examples of incorrect responses provided for the reason why it is not recommend to apply nitrogen fertilizer for growing specimen F (sweet potatoes tuber) in part (a)(v) were: *lead to formation of more roots than leaves and does not require fertilizer for growth of leaves*.

Six commonly grown varieties of specimen H in Tanzania in part (a) (vi) were incorrectly responded by the candidates with responses such as: *sweet orange, muheza orange, sour orange, red orange, yellow orange and green orange.* In part (a)(vii), some of incorrect responses for the four common names of most frequently occurring pests of specimen H (sweet orange fruit) given by the candidates were like: *nematodes, cutworms, leaf minor, orange weevil, mealy bug, fungus fleas and bacteria.* Incorrect responses such as *suckers, rhizomes* and *stolons* were given by the candidates as the types of vegetative propagating materials for specimen I in part (a) (viii).

Furthermore, in part (b)(i), most of the candidates responded incorrectly for the identification of the given specimens and where the candidates managed to write the correct botanical names for the specimens, they failed to follow the rules of nomenclature. In part (b) (ii) these candidates did not manage to give benefits of specimen D to a farmer and provided responses such *as prevents soil erosion and source of manure*. Number of suckers recommended to be left in a stool of specimen G and two names of suckers recommended to be left in a stool of specimen G in part (c) (i) and (ii) respectively were likewise incorrectly responded by majority of the candidates. Incorrect responses provided by candidates in almost all parts of the question justify inadequate knowledge and lack of practical skills on the production of various crops involved in the question. Extract 2.1.2 depicts one of the poor responses in the question.

Extract 2.1.2

1. (1) To chertify each of specimen A, B, C; D, E, F, G, H, 1	
Af & Specimen A is	
This is very growing in the farmer to the suitable in the	
lend to in the Suitable in the root.	
EXAMINATIONS AND KORD BOOKET	
Specimen & Paw Paw	
3323 AU	130
Specimen e is Moringe Seeds	Ð
S Lociti Internet	
	- D
specimen D is Scintut	
specimien E is Nut glass.	
Specimen F is Sweet Potatoes	
specimen 4 is flower plant	
Specimen H is ofruit orange	
Specimen 1 is.	
	saja Is
ii): Because it is very good the land purporse.	
is the frawing to production.	
	1
(111) To distinguith three types of specimen B in H flower	
(a): Annual Perro par	
(3): morine phrs paul	1
· · ·	
11: Airo Aina Pani Pano.	

	(v)" To state the male: Comole plant ratio for coving	
	R to be observed in low in	
	Store observer in firming.	
	have plant of spearmen D is # sparrier	
	female plant of specimen D' il Pisti	
	V. It produces in the animal feeding in	
	the mass to the growing	
	(V): Help to poor production & all : (V)	
	VI/: To nome Six common grown specimen H vinieties	
-	in Janzemia.	
17.16	1): Veterroin Tropical	
	il: Land	
	(iii): the Topographical	-
	in:) Climate	
	V/ Water (Tain fall)	
	VIT. Semberature	
		_
	Vill: To give four common name of mest frequently	
- 15	occuring petts of Specimen H.	
	a/. biomsecta.	
	hle America he	
	c/. Kingdom.	
	dl. G.a:	
	ar fingle	
	Richo a to a company of at	
	1, 11 To ldenlify each of specimen 6, D and E by their	
	Dotanicof name	
	Specimum C 15 Mollinge SEEBS	
	Specimen D 13	
	specimen & is NUT GLASS	
1.	b(ii): Five benefits of sepecimen D to a farmer?	
	(i): It grow is the fermer	
	in and plant of Stadion E 11 BUGAUNS	
	(1)): it have climate condition	
	(iiii): it help temperature of the farmer.	
	i where we are with the	
	(iv): Help to good production	
	(V). provide the good product in the farmer.	

Extract 2.1.2 is a sample of responses from a candidate who performed poorly in the question. The candidate had incorrect responses in all parts of the question; justifying lack of knowledge and practical skills on production of various crops.

3.1.2 Question 2: Livestock Production

In this question, the candidates were provided with the following specimen J-Poultry egg, K-Strip cup, L-Fresh milk, M-Ticks, N- Branding iron, O-Bull nose ring and P-Guatemala grass. Candidates were required to (a) (i) briefly describe the composition and functions of shell in the specimen J, (ii) name in which part of reproduction system of a bird where shell part is added and (iii) state five composition of newly laid specimen J, (b) (i) suggest two materials and five equipment apart from specimen K which are to be used during harvesting of specimen L, (ii) briefly describe the procedure for harvesting specimen L by using hands. (c), state six harmful effects of specimen M to farm animals, (d) (i) examine the procedures for using specimen N in animal management practices, (ii) name other three methods which are used for the same purpose as specimen N, (iii) give the name of specimen O, (iv) explain how specimen O is used for its function, (v) identify specimen P by its botanical name and (vi) propose two other materials as specimen P that are suitable for planting in pasture by giving their common names.

The question was opted by 5,232 (64.8%) candidates whereby 2,475 (47.3%) candidates scored 0 to 7 marks; 2,715 (51.9%) candidates scored 7.5 to 16 marks and 42 (0.8%) candidates scored 16.5 to 19.5 marks of the total 25 marks in the question. The candidates' general performance in the question was average due to the fact that 2,757 (52.7%) candidates scored 7.5 to 19.5 marks as indicated in Figure 2.2.



Figure 2.2: Candidates' Performance in Question 15

Figure 2.2 advocates average performance of candidates in the question whereby 52.7 percent of candidates scored 30 percent and above. Various topics on the field of livestock production examined in the question had different performance by the candidates. This observation was found to contribute to average performance of the candidates.

Most of the candidates who had good performance gave correct responses in almost all parts of the question except part (a)(ii) and (iii). Provision of correct responses to most parts of the question items identified indicates that the candidates were knowledgeable enough and had practical experience on milking process, animal parasites, animal identification and pastures.

However, these candidates, had weakness in responding correctly to part (a)(ii) and (a)(iii) of the question. In Part (a)(ii) most of the candidates failed to name the part of reproductive system in which the shell part of specimen J is added. Some of the incorrect responses provided by candidates in this part were *stomach, ovary, vent and reproductive organ*. In part (a)(iii), examples of incorrect responses for composition of newly laid specimen J provided were such as: *chalaza, egg yolk, albumin and egg shell*. This indicates that the candidates had partial knowledge on egg as livestock product. Extract 2.2.1 is an example of good responses

Extract 2.2.1

(Poultry egg)	
a Tixomposition of the shell of specimen J 2 that	
it untains large amount of calcium	
carbonate.	
- Calcium phosphate	-3-0
- Very little amount of magnessim	
sult and pritein.	
Function: It hold the content of egg in place or position	
in Jpenimen I shell is added in the uteris	
ility Five compositions of newly laud specimen J.	
1. Vitamini 4. Minerals.	
2. Poten 5. Little amount of water and	
3. Lipids Carbinydate.	
	a 71X imposition of the shell of specimen J 2 that 17 untains = - large amount of calcium carbonate. - Calcium phosphate - Very little amount of magnession rult and pritein. Function: It hold the writent of egg in place or position if Jpecimen J shell is added in the uteris iii 7 Five ampositions of newly laid specimen J. 1. Vitamin's 4. Minerals. 2. Potein 5. Little amount of water and 3. Lipids Carbonydate.

2. by it The two materials and five equipment used appart from specimen K (Ship cup) used during harvesting of specimen 2 (Freshmilk) are: Material: Materials. i) Disinfectants before and after milking ijy Milk jelly Matchals 17 clean tower. is cleff mustin or piece of cluth for staining. Equipments i) Mille burcket i) stol for sitting during milking in> Weighing balance iv> Clean towel for drying the udder v> clean muslin or prece of cloth for straining milc. iny The following are procedures used during hand milling for harves hing of specimen Ji 1. Preparation of the equipments and tusts All necessary tosts are assembed and are like, milk bucket, towel which are dean, struner, stud, mille jelly, warm water, disinfect ant- and 2. Preparation of the cone. The cour is prepared and when is not docide the hind leggs are tied traverid kicking.

2 157 17 3. The www udder is mashed and by water dred a clean and ularm and by using after miller has disinfectation hand. towel milling ielly 4. The is applied to soften milking teat to avoid the injur during 5. The cours is milked antil almost all mille udder it should 51 Nm he and over led to Ceave milkin the udder. ALDA amount of drue from 6. the small milkis aup to fest the mashift ud der in to stri GAA applarance of white blood clots clots of 20 the should not he milked. free from mastities. milk the 6. 1 Cau i the car unhil all milk is almost over. weig 4 the hiltering and store after straining it or a cor dn almostat 4°c place disinfect the equi allan and onents then shi to the other hands and + lan ujed milking Lor M 07 effects of specimen Tick Harful leads to the spread of disease's like fever. Heartunter and anaplasmusis aust anaemia to animals as it iny leads to du. Suc restiles new of the animal in 7 11 as Cause the suck bloud IUY IF leads to pour quality skin of animal simol. they puncture theskin VY They creates openings where pathogens enter the lower production of the farm animals. They VIY

Extract 2.2.1 is a sample of responses from a candidate who performed well. The candidate managed to provide correct responses to most parts of the question except some points in (a) (i) (b) (ii).

Candidates who performed poorly in this question provided incorrect responses in many parts of the question except in parts (a)(i), and (b)(ii) where they managed to get correct some few points.

In part (a)(ii), the majority of these candidates failed to name the part in the reproductive system of the bird where the shell part of specimen J is added. Most of the candidates mixed the parts and named parts of the digestive

system instead of the reproductive system of the bird (uterus) responsible for adding shell part to the specimen J. In part (a)(iii), the candidates failed to state the composition of newly laid specimen J and gave responses such as: *it is used in production of protein, it is used to provide vitamin, source of energy.* In part (a)(iii) the candidates did not understand the requirement of the question, hence provided responses that were not related to the question asked.

In part (b)(ii), most of the candidates did not manage to describe the procedure for harvesting specimen L using hand but outlined composition and importance of the specimen. This gives the picture that the candidates lacked knowledge and field practical skills on the milking process.

The candidates also failed to examine the procedures for using specimen N in animal management practice and were unable to name other methods which are used for the same purpose as specimen N in part (d)(i) and (d)(ii) respectively. Failure to attempt these parts correctly means that the candidates had inadequate knowledge and practical experience in animal identification.

Likewise, the candidates failed to identify specimen O and its function in part (d)(iii) and part (d)(iv) respectively. Some of the incorrect identifications of specimen O were *hook* and *pin*, in which some of the candidates explained it as *used for making animal cool and for decoration*. In this part the candidates were observed to possess inadequate knowledge and practical skills on animal management practices.

The candidates failed to give the botanical name of specimen P and other materials similar to specimen P that are suitable for planting in pasture in part (d) (v) and (vi) respectively. In part (d) (v), the majority of the candidates identified the specimen by its common name instead of its botanical name. This signifies that the candidates possessed inadequate knowledge on pasture and their botanical names. Extract 2.2.2 shows an example of poor responses in the question from one of the candidate.

Extract 2.2.2

2 a 1/ potting egg. It help to source of porten in human being 11/ Source of porten Good of food in a source of food B Source of proten c Source of income b Spe amenk - strip lup 1) Chuji of mille fresh if it help in water in/ le helpin materials of maire plant "10) It belp in chuain VI b Specimen L- fresh mille is it help to Source of porten. in ut help to file of inimal C i effector maine d Specimen N- Brading ion i Ut goal uguza in ngoz' in alam, of goat. íi, Tip Specimen O in Bull role ving ivy it used of caw in banding ion W Specimen & maize plant vij source of food Source of food of animal

Extract 2.2.2 is an illustration of a sample of poor responses. The candidate attempted poorly in all parts of the question signifying inadequate knowledge and practical skills on the content on the question.

3.1.3 Agro-Mechanics and Soil Science

The candidates were provided with the following specimens: Q-Ball pane hammer, R-Rasp file, S-wood float, T-Spirit level, U-Anvil, V-Barbed wire, W-Cassava root tuber, X-Centro plant, Y-Farm yard manure. Candidates were required to (a) (i) identify the specimens Q, R, S, T and U, (ii) briefly explain the function of each of the specimens Q, R, S, T and U, (iii) state the process in which specimen U is used in workshop technology (iv) give the function of mortar with which specimen S is used for, (b) (i) identify the specimen V, (ii) name other three types of material that are used for the same purpose as specimen V, (iii) State the use of specimen V, (iv) give reason why specimen V not recommended in sheep houses, (c) (i) identify specimens W and X by their scientific name, (ii) state where does the specimen W absorb its nutrients in the soil profile, (iii) briefly explain what will happen if specimen W is not used with a shallow root system crop in the farm, (iv) state the role of specimen X in improving soil fertility and productivity and (v) elaborate two types of biological nitrogen fixation for specimen X and (d) briefly explain two considerations you will take in storage and handling of specimen Y.

The question was opted by 6,478 (80.2%) candidates of which 2,318 (35.8%) candidates scored 0 to 7 marks; 4,106 (63.2%) candidates scored 7.5 to 16 marks and 54 (1%) candidates scored 16.5 to 22 marks out of the 25 marks allocated in the question. Generally, these data indicate average performance of the candidates in the question as 4,160 (64.2%) candidates scored 16.5 to 22 marks. Figure 2.3 indicates distribution of candidates' scores in the question.


Figure 2.3: Candidates' Performance in Question 16

Figure 2.3 signifies average performance of the candidates in the question with 64.2 percent of the candidates scored 30 percent and above. In the analysis of candidates' responses, it was observed that most of the candidates did not do well in the question items on the topics from the field on soil science. The candidates had good performance on agro-mechanics, the fact that led to average performance of the candidates in the question.

In the group of the candidates who performed well in the question, most parts of the question were correctly attempted by these candidates. Candidates did well in parts (a) (i), (ii), (iii) (v), (b) (i), (iii), (iv), (c) (i), (iii) (iv) and (d). However, most of them responded incorrectly in parts (b) (ii), (c) (ii) and (v). Correct responses provided by the candidates in the named parts suggest that they had ample knowledge and practical experience on workshop and masonry tools and soil fertility.

On the other hand, most of the candidates did not do well in part (b) (ii) as they failed to name other three types of materials that are used for the same purpose as specimen P (Guatemala grass). Examples of incorrect responses in this part were: *live fence, wood fence, tree fence and block fence* signifying inadequate knowledge on farm structures in part of candidates.

Moreover, the candidates also failed to identify a place where specimen W absorbs its nutrients in the soil profile in part (ii). *O-horizon, A-horizon, soil profile* and *clay soil* were some of the incorrect responses provided by

candidates in part (ii). In part (c)(v), the incorrect responses provided by these candidates for two types of biological nitrogen fixation for specimen X were such as *microbial fixation, decomposition fixation, nitrification fixation, nitrogenation and, hydrolysis and reabsorption*. This suggests that the candidates had inadequate knowledge on plant nutrition. Extract 2.3.1 is an example of good response for a candidate who performed well in the question.

Extract 2	2.3.1
-----------	-------

- Ear moletung result	M. O.
3(a) (i) Specimen Q'il Ball pein hammer	0.00
- Specimen R il Buse file	100
- Casimen Si Whard Hout	
-specifiend Sis Mood Julia	The Party of the P
-specimien 1 U spins rever	-
-Specimen u & Anvil	in the
Consultation of the start start start	IN UN
360 (ii)-The Kinchin og back Specimen Q, R, SI, 4	11/
Late prove success make, s	
Specimen O (Ball pern hammer)	
It is used for chaping metal	
Carrinen R Rhang Gile)	11/15
It is alled for large fine	
-n is using our smoosting tought surraite	122
UT WODA	
Contract C (Uport (Lab)	
-Specimen S (Wood J war)	N. M. M.
. If I used in levelling bining concrete	
specimen 7 (Spint level)	101 101
It is used in placing brilks in straight line	
nerbicaly or honrontally.	
Specimen u (Anni)	
It is used for supporting piece or motal	
duning braing Brail	
conterry forging process,	
NOVENCON A CONTRACT TO	
La musice ((Thvil) Il useer in forging.	
parminut ing or	
torging 1) the the process by which heated	
metal is shaped in required shape by hanomenty	
. lA.	

2(a) (10) Function of mortar is used in sticking together bricks. Mortay is well to ste stick bricks during masonly activities 3(5) is Specimen V is Barbed wire (ii) - Electric wire - Worven wire - Rid wire - Plants (iii) Specimen v is used in fencing farm. The specimen (1) parbel wire is used for construction of fiences for resisting (controlling animal and Cuman movement. (iv) Specimen (v) (Barbed wire) not recommend in Shuep because; -henomes wood of the sheep when brief h pass, - Barbiel wire can attent sheep skin. 3(0) (U) - Specimen w (cassary not puber) is Manihot esculenta - Specimen x (Sesban) & Sesbania sesban - Specimen X (Centro) is Centrosemu Rubersces

3(0)(ii) The specimen w absorb its nuprient from A - horizon a- hurizon and A - hurizon 3(O(i) The speimen w (Cassary nost hiber) absorb 1/2 nutrients from A-honron of the Soil profite (iii) It specimen w is not plented with shallow not crops, withe following will happen. -The subject will be not subject well. Shallow not crops absorb number from a-honrows It are not there the nutrient will be lost. - The shallow rost crops increase soil subment it begume is included, their fore the fration will fake place. -The shallow rost crops need nitrogen for Their youth but spermun w cherry neuls high amound of nipogen. 30 (IM) Specimen X 11 reguments plant therefor play the theor paing nitrogen in these Sort. This increase the the production by of the Suil.

30(1)-Symbish's nihogen Rixabin, By mbish 2 nitroyen fixation. (V) - Synchiohr mboyen paulin i done baltena ulurle is formal in the Legundenens plant Bynilistic mongen hautor i occurry natirally formed abriv plue In 3(d) Specimen y (Farm yard manuse) is storage Water pr Rain Prove for the following purpase. (i) In order to prevent leading if fat the rain oaus. manure undergo leaching Farm yard It 18 Shred poorly. Is that Should (ii) Another away from Sun light. This helps to nument Store be cause sunlight cause Volaptization, flue Nitrater hence vaporabe Loss of nitrgen There be stored Thould under which well.

Extract 2.3.1 represents candidate's good responses to the question. The candidate responded well to almost all parts of the question, except in part (b)(ii) (c) (ii) and (v).

Contrarily, the candidates who performed poorly did not do well in most of the question parts. Most of the candidates attempted incorrectly in parts (a) (i) (ii) (iii) (iv), (b) (ii), (c) (ii) and (v) and part (d). However, most of the candidates had correct responses in part (b) (i) (c) (i), (iii) and (iv). In part (a)(i) and (ii) a number of these candidates failed to identify and give the functions of the named specimens respectively. Likewise in part (a)(iii), the candidates did not manage to name the process in which specimen U is used. In part (a) (iv), the majority of the candidates were unable to explain the function of mortar with which specimen S (Wood float) is used for by providing incorrect responses like: *construction the wood or recommended place to be flat and used for construction the building or soil in the area*. This indicates that the candidates possessed inadequate knowledge and field practical skills on workshop tools and masonry work.

In part (b) (ii), the candidates failed to name the other three types of materials which are used for the same purpose as specimen V. Examples of incorrect responses in part (b) (ii) were: *netting wires, electrical wires and nail wire,* implying that the candidates lacked knowledge on farm structures.

In part (c) (ii), most of these candidates did not manage to state where the cassava root tuber absorb the nutrients in the soil profile by providing incorrect responses like: absorb its nutrients in the soil profile to the root system, absorb in the profile O and penetrate the roots to the soil. In part (c)(v), majority of candidates were unable to provide correct responses for types of biological nitrogen fixation for specimen X. Examples of incorrect responses in part (c) (ii) were: oxygen, nitrogen, nitrification, denitrification, as types of biological nitrogen fixation for specimen X. In part (d) of the question, most of candidates were unable to give correct responses for the considerations that may be taken in storage and handling of specimen Y and gave responses such as: farm manure increase soil fertility, store in clean area and dry surface, store in the house of animal, in the sun in order to allow composition speed, there should be water to allow microbial activities and store in plastic bags. The incorrect responses provided by the candidates in these parts demonstrate lack of knowledge on soil fertility by the candidates. Extract 2.3.2 denotes poor responses from one of the candidates.

Extract 2.3.2

1	
	a 1/ 1dentity specimens 9, R, S, Tardy
	Specimen Q 115 Screw syste size
	Speamen R Ls
1	Speimen S W
	Specimen T ls
	Specimen U U
-	1) The following are user of specimen
	U D asraibwy?
-	Specimen E 12 - 19-19 - 19-19
+	W/ What is the function of mortan wired
	In each which specimen SD wid
	specimen S is used to soft to deft the
	house.
-	b/ identify specimen V.
	Specimen V Ls
	the second of th
	efficientify specimen we and a
	sperimen w 15 Cassancar.
_	specimen st is
	If the sollowing are reasons may specific
	n w obsorb CB hadrenes of bit soll
	produe:
	-This to because the specific and built
	grow at high temperature are we
	rainful
3.	21 il Account for effect of solubility of
	specimen Z in tarming
	1) To remove weeds in the faith :
	11/ Growing of plant

Extract 2.3.2 is a representative sample of poor responses in the question. The candidate had all parts of the question incorrectly attempted, showing lack of knowledge and practical skills on the subject matter.

disease which face

plant

4.0 PERFORMANCE OF THE CANDIDATES ON EACH TOPIC/FIELD

m/ To

Kill

Inc

This section presents performance of the candidates in different topics/fields. The performance in different topics/fields in 2018 CSEE is shown in Appendix I whereby, green colour portrays topics with good performance; yellow colour indicates topics with average performance, while red colour denotes topics in which the candidates performed poorly.

The analysis depicts that, candidates had good performance in the topics on surveying (76.5%) and topics in a Multiple Choice questions (70.2%). The topic on Surveying from the field of Agro-Mechanics has its performance increased to good in 2018 CSEE compared to the topic on Farm Power from the same field in 2017 CSEE, which had poor performance. Multiple choice questions in 2018 CSEE have decreased their performance compared to performance in 2017 CSEE, though the performance remains good.

Candidates performed averagely in topics/fields on Agricultural Mechanics and Soil Science (64.2%), Livestock Production (52.7%), Dairy Cattle Production (38.4%), Crop Production (33.1%), Crop Protection (31.25% and Soil and Water Conservation (31.1%). The performance of the field on Agro-Mechanics and Soil Science was average in 2018 CSEE and 2017 CSEE, although it has increased in 2018 CSEE while the field on Livestock Production and Crop Production have increased their performance from poor in 2017 CSEE to average in 2018 CSEE. The topic on Crop Protection also has its performance increased to average in 2018 CSEE from poor performance in 2017 CSEE.

However, weak performance of the candidates was observed in the topics on Animal Feeds and Feeding (23.1%), Agricultural Extension (21.6%), Agricultural Marketing (18.8%), Factors Affecting Livestock production in Matching Items question (17.9%), Factors of Production (11.8%), Soil Formation (11.4%) and Forestry Crops Production (7.1%).

The topics on Animal Feeds and Feeding remained with weak performance in 2018 CSEE as it was in the topic of Poultry Farming in 2017 CSEE; both topics derived from the field of Livestock Production. The topic on Agricultural Extension also maintained its weak performance in both years. Likewise, the Matching Items questions had weak performance in both 2018 CSEE and 2017 CSEE. Similarly, the performance on the topic of Factors of Production remained weak in 2018 CSEE as it was in the topic of Agricultural Prices in 2017 CSEE; both topics from the field of Farming Business Economics.

However, the topic on Soil Formation has decreased its performance from good in 2017 CSEE to weak in 2018 CSEE, while the topics on Forestry Crops Production and Bee - keeping and Fish Farming both from the field of Natural Resources have their performance decreased to average in 2017 CSEE

to weak in 2018 CSEE. Comparison of candidates' performance in different topics/fields in 2018 CSEE and 2017 CSEE is summarized in Appendix II.

5.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Conclusion

The general performance in this year's examination was average. It was found from the analysis that candidates who did well in the examination possess good mastery of the subject matter knowledge in different topics. The candidates also had enough field practical skills on different topics and good command of the English language that enabled them to meet the demands of the questions.

However, several reasons have contributed in candidates' poor performance in the examination. These reasons include; lack of enough exposure to practical. Most of the candidates did not perform well in practical examination due to their inadequate field practical skills. Possession of adequate practical skills could have been an added advantage in responding correctly to some of the questions in the theory examination which needed practical exposure, since students learn better by doing.

Candidates' poor understanding of different topics was also observed to contribute to candidates' poor performance in the examination. This was evident in the case where the candidates provided incorrect responses in most parts of the questions. Inadequate subject matter knowledge also caused candidates to provide either partial correct responses or failing to respond to the question. Moreover, failure to understand the tasks and demands of questions led candidates to provide incorrect responses and in some cases provided responses that were not related to the questions asked. Most of the candidates also failed to address properly the action verbs used in the questions. This was observed in the action verbs that demanded candidates to give detailed information and instead they responded by giving little information by either mentioning or outlining. The problem of lack of English language proficiency by most of the candidates resulted into candidates' failure in elaborating their points and sometimes writing sentences which could not be understood.

5.2 Recommendations

The findings in this report revealed general average performance of the candidates with some of the candidates performing well and others doing poorly in the examination. The following are recommended so as to improve the performance in the future examinations.

- (i) Teachers and students should adapt and use Information and Communication Technology (ICT) in teaching and learning process to enhance acquisition of knowledge.
- (ii) Teachers to make effective use of subject enabling infrastructures in conducting practical sessions as students learn better by doing.
- (iii) Teachers should incorporate resource persons in different subject fields to teach various topics.
- (iv) Teachers through assessment and evaluation should identify slow learners and offer remedial classes to them.
- (v) Teachers to set standard tests and examinations to acquaint students with different types of questions in examinations.
- (vi) Teachers should use appropriate teaching strategies and techniques according to the topic content and type of the learner.
- (vii) English language should be made to be an official medium of communication so as to make students proficient in the language.
- (viii) Candidates should carefully read the examination questions before attempting them in order understand their demands.

The findings and recommendations in this report based on the analysis of candidates' responses to the examination questions. There is an opportunity for the educationalists and researchers to find out other factors that contribute to candidates' poor performance in their examination so as to improve future performance.

Appendix I

S/N	Торіс	Percentage of Candidates who scored the average of 30% and above	Comments
1.	Surveying	76.5	Good
2.	Multiple Choice	70.2	Good
3.	Agricultural Mechanics and Soil Science -2	64.2	Average
4.	Livestock Production-2	52.7	Average
5.	Dairy Cattle Production	38.4	Average
6.	Crop Production-2	33.1	Average
7.	Crop Protection	31.25	Average
8.	Soil and Water Conservation	31.1	Average
9.	Animal Feeds and Feeding	23.1	Weak
10.	Agricultural Extensions	21.6	Weak
11.	Agricultural Marketing	18.8	Weak
12.	Matching Items	17.9	Weak
13.	Factors of Production	11.8	Weak
14.	Soil Formation	11.4	Weak
15.	Forestry Crop Production	7.1	Weak

Performance of the candidates on topics/fields in a CSEE 2018

Appendix II

Comparison of Candidates' Performance on topics/fields in CSEE 2017 and 2018

S/N	Topic/fields	2017	Topic/fields	2018
		Percentage of Candidates who scored the average of 30% and above		Percentage of Candidates who scored the average of 35% and above
1.	Multiple-choice Items Question (Classification of Crops Grown in Tanzania, Principles of Livestock Production, Agricultural Extension, Agricultural Extension, Agricultural Prices, Farm Power, Soil Constituents and Physical Properties of the Soil, Bee-keeping, Environmental Degradation, Factors of Production and Pig Production)	78.72	Multiple-choice Items Question (Farm Records and Accounts, Farm Workshop, Factors Affecting Crop Production, Soil Fertility and Productivity, Agricultural Extension, Sheep Farming, Agroforestry, Agricultural Development in Tanzania, Soil and Water Conservation, Annual Field Crop Production)	70.2
2.	Soil Formation	70.66	Soil Formation	11.4
3.	Soil Science and Agro-Mechanics (practical question)	51.54	Soil Science and Agro-Mechanics (practical question)	64.2
4.	BeekeepingandFishFarming(NaturalResources)	49.46	ForestryCropProduction(NaturalResources)	7.1
5.	Environmental Degradation	28.72		

S/N	Topic/fields	2017	Topic/fields	2018
		Percentage of Candidates who scored the average of 30% and above		Percentage of Candidates who scored the average of 35% and above
6.	Crop Protection	17.75	Crop Protection	31.25
7.	Agricultural Prices	16.31	Factors of	11.8
	(Farming Business		Production	
	Economics)		(Farming Business	
			Economics)	
8.	Crop Production	15.89	Crop Production	33.1
	(practical question)		(practical question)	55.1
9.	Livestock Production	14.02	Livestock	
	(practical question)		Production	52.7
			(practical question)	
10.	Poultry Farming	13.19	Animal Feeds and	23.1
	(Livestock		Feeding (Livestock	
	Production)		Production)	
11.	Farm Power		Surveying	
	(Agricultural	11.54	(Agricultural	76.5
	Mechanics)		Mechanics)	
12.	Matching Items	9.20	Matching Items	
	question (Plant		Question (Factors	17 9
	Nutrition)		Affecting Livestock	2,112
			Production)	
13.	Agricultural	8.31	Agricultural	21.6
	Extension		Extension	
14.			Dairy Cattle	38.4
			Production	
15.			Soil and Water	31.1
			Conservation	
16.			Agricultural	18.8
			Marketing	